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Five-Year Financial Summary

T EHBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=1+—HILLFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BB —“T-NF T\ —T+F —T-RF

Profitability data BRELYE
(RMB million) (AR¥EBER)

Revenue Wogs 111.9 169.7 164.5 1255 215.8
Gross profit EF 18.0 30.1 395 285 75.3
Loss for the year FREE (108.8) (314.4) (275.3) (435.4) (317.6)
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)

Gross profit margin EF= 16.1% 17.7% 24.0% 22.7% 34.9%
Net loss margin FERE (97.2%  (1853)%  (167.4)%  (346.9)%  (147.2)%

Assets and liabilities data EERAERE

(RMB million) (AR®EETR)
Non-current assets FRBEE 92.8 153.9 4419 705.3 1,417.0
Current assets MEEE 102.8 120.5 128.8 110.4 117.6
Current liabilities mEaE 234.9 2233 2519 294.1 2248
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 5.6 3.1 4.8 108.2 466.5
Shareholders’ equity RS (44.9) 48.0 3139 4134 843.4
Asset and working EEREEES

capital data g
Current asset ratios (%) MBS ELLE (%) 52.5% 43.9% 22.6% 13.5% 7.7%
Current ratios (time) TEILL R () 0.4x 0.5x 0.5x 0.4x 0.5x
Gearing ratios (%) B2 % (%) (523.8)% 466.4% 80.9% 96.0% 80.6%

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Baofeng Modern International Holdings
Company Limited (“Baofeng Modern” or the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the financial report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") epidemic
in 2020 had an adverse impact on global economies,
particularly in the retail market. Although the production
of the Group has fully resumed in the first half of the year,
the lockdowns and social distancing measures have severely
affected the consumer demand and the quantity ordered,
resulting in a decline in the sales of the Group, especially for
the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM") business, for
the current year. During 2020, the Group recorded a decrease
in revenue of approximately RMB57.8 million or 34.1% to
approximately RMB111.9 million. Due to the contraction in
the consumer demand, some major customers of the OEM
Business asked for price cut, the Group was forced to reduce
its gross profit margin to retain existing customers. Therefore,
the gross profit margin of the Group during the year was
dropped to approximately 16.1%.

Looking ahead to 2021, the global outbreak of the COVID-19
epidemic is expected to continue to have a negative impact on
the global retail market. However, it is expected that the retail
market will recover from the shock as many countries started
the COVID-19 vaccinations and plan to ease the restrictive
measures. The Group expects the delayed orders of OEM
customers will resume in 2021. Besides, consumers purchasing
habit was forced to change due to the COVID-19 epidemic and
even after epidemic was under control in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"), consumers may perpetually maintain the
same or perhaps higher levels of online purchasing. Hence, the
Group would focus on online sales in the PRC and the design
and sales of indoor slippers in 2021.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

TR®|ES

The Group continuously endeavored to transform itself from
a traditional manufacturing company to a materials science
company in 2020. Besides the gradual progress in the
development of air sterilizers and carbon-based energy storage
batteries, the Group officially entered into the photovoltaic
industry this year, with a plan to manufacture and sell cast
monocrystalline silicon (“Cast-mono”) wafers and Cast-mono
heterojunction (“HJT") solar cells developed based on the
proprietary materials science technology of the Group.

In view of the rising expectations of the global community
for renewable energy, and China’s goal of achieving carbon
neutrality by 2060, the Group has established the strategic
goal of accelerating the transformation of the photovoltaic
industry with its materials science expertise. In 2020, the
Group conducted technological collaboration with several
leading companies in the photovoltaic industry, and leveraged
the materials science expertise accumulated by the Group
over the years to successfully develop Cast-mono wafers
that effectively reduce wafer costs, and further realized
the production of high efficiency HJT solar cells produced
with Cast-mono wafers through cooperation with strategic
partners. Going forward, the Group will focus on mass
production of the above Cast-mono wafers and Cast-mono
HJT solar cells, and thus contributes to the realisation of the
carbon neutrality goal.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous commitment and support.

Leung Tsz Chung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although the production of the Group have fully resumed in
the first half of the year, the global outbreak of the COVID-19
epidemic and the associated lockdowns and social distancing
measures have severely affected the consumer demand and
the quantity ordered, resulting in a decline in the sales of the
Group, especially for the OEM business, for the current year.
During the year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue of
approximately RMB57.8 million or 34.1% for approximately
RMB111.9 million (2019: RMB169.7 million).

Due to the contraction in the consumer demand, some major
customers of the OEM Business asked for price cut, the Group
was forced to reduce its gross profit margin to retain existing
customers. Therefore, the gross profit margin of the Group
during the year was dropped to approximately 16.1% (2019:
17.7%).

During the year, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB108.8 million, as compared with the net
loss of approximately RMB314.4 million of last year. Such
decrease in net loss was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in
amortisation of intangible assets of approximately RMB40.4
million; (ii) decrease in impairment loss on intangible assets
of approximately RMB169.5 million; (iii) fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately RMB14.1 million
(2019: Nil); net-off by (iv) increase in share-based payment
expenses of approximately RMB10.6 million.

Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic, the formal
launch of the new generation of do-it-yourself (“DIY")
automated vending system was delayed to October 2020.
Besides, as the epidemic has bolstered the growing trend of
customers staying at home and shopping online, the Group
would allocate more resources and focused on online sales in
the PRC. As the management of the Company made a more
prudent estimation on the future quantity and the speed
of installation of the DIY automated vending system in the
financial model, impairment loss of approximately RMB51.3
million and approximately RMB13.5 million on the technology
know-how and Online-to-Offline (*020") distribution system
was recognised during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue by Product Category

B % B B
REMERZENKE
Increase/
2020 2019  (decrease)
RMB’000 RMB'000 % change
g,

—B=BF T % CRi)

ARETRT ARETT % % &
Revenue (Boree Products) W (BEABES) 2,025 2,721 (25.6)%
Revenue (Graphene-based Products) W (AR2EES) 4,154 4,024 3.2%
Revenue (OEM Business) Wz (OEMEETS) 105,690 162,942 (35.1)%
Revenue (Total) s (42%8) 111,869 169,687 (34.1)%
Boree Products BEABER

As the Group focused on the promotion of the newly launched
indoor graphene-based sterilizing slippers “Graphener” during
the year, online sales of Boree products declined and revenue
from Boree Products decreased by 25.6% to approximately
RMB2.0 million during the year (2019: RMB2.7 million).

Graphene-based Products

Revenue of the Graphene-based Products amounted to
approximately RMB4.2 million (2019: RMB4.0 million) during
the year. Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic,
the formal launch of the new generation of DIY automated
vending system was delayed to October 2020. However, as the
epidemic has bolstered the growing trend of customers staying
at home and shopping online, the Group allocated more
resources on online sales in the PRC and focused on the design
and sales of indoor slippers. During the first half of the year,
the newly launched indoor graphene-based sterilizing slippers
“Graphener” were favored by consumers and the sales kept
growing in the second half of the year. As a result, revenue of
Graphene-based Products slightly increased during the year.

For other graphene application products, the Group has
launched three models of air sterilizers “Graphenix” and
has sent samples to an overseas well-known producer of air
conditioning system for testing and recognition. Graphenix
is specially designed to kill viruses and bacteria that cause
allergies and respiratory system discomfort and different
models are designed for household and for places with strict
requirements on air quality, such as workplace, studio, and
other demanding indoor environment. The feedback from this
customer is positive and a first order of small quantity was
completed during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
OEM Business

Due to the global outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic and
the associated lockdowns and social distancing measures, the
consumer demand for non-essential retail goods was severely
affected. Although the delayed customers orders in the first
half of this year were gradually resumed in the second half
of the year, some orders near the end of the year could not
be completed in time during the year, the shipment had to
be postponed to the first quarter of 2021. The contraction in
the customer demand resulting in a substantial decrease of
approximately RMB57.2 million revenue from OEM business
to approximately RMB105.7 million during the year (2019:
RMB162.9 million).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses decreased
by 28.6% to approximately RMB7.9 million as compared with
that of last year (2019: RMB11.1 million), which accounted for
7.1% (2019: 6.5%) of the Group’s revenue. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decline in sales during the year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded an increase
of approximately RMB15.2 million or 34.1% during the year
as compared with that of last year (2019: RMB44.5 million),
which was mainly attributable to (i) increase in share-based
payment expenses of approximately RMB10.6 million in
relation to the share options granted by the Company on 22
October 2020; and (ii) increase in research and development
cost of approximately RMB3.4 million during the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash outflow from operating activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.6 million (2019:
RMB8.3 million). As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank
balances were approximately RMBO0.6 million, representing
a decrease of 84.8% as compared with the cash and bank
balances as at the end of last year (2019: RMB4.1 million).
As at 31 December 2020, around 61.4% and 30.6% of
the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi respectively. As at 31
December 2020, the short term borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB130.1 million (2019: RMB114.2 million). All
loans were denominated in Renminbi, with fixed interest rates
and repayable within one year.

EEENWmR DM

B E B8 (&)

OEME 7§

BN 2 ERIREECOVID-19% 15 R AE e £ 84
M Z AR HBEYIENETEN R
MERZIBREFYE - BEAFELFF
MEERPRTER T EFEERHIRE - — LR
MFENGEBEINFARETK  E8
EHEE T - —FF - FTE-HBET
Sk U 48 8 B OEMZE 75 Hy Uk 25 KR Rl A 49 A
R#57,200,0007 =4 A R #¥105,700,000
T (ZZF—NF: AR®162,900,0007T) °

HERDHBX
FA-HERDHEAIHEAFHALE TR
28.6% = #) AR #7,900,0007T ( —Z— A1
F: AR¥11,100,0000T) A EE K S
B71% (22— NF:65%)°  TEEE
EHRFREE TR

—MBRITHEX
FRN—ETHEAIHEEFRELESEL
A R #15,200,0007C 34.1 %R FH 18 ( =
T —NF: AR%44,500,0007T) TEZ
AROARAFTR_E_TF+A=-+=H
BRHBREZ ARDIAHAEZ EAHA
K #10,600,0007T : K (ii)Bff 2 pk R A 6
HEANA) A R #3,400,0007T AT X ©

RBEERMBEER

FRA AEELEFH 2R RE FE
45 NE¥2,600,000T (ZF— N5F:
AR #8,300,000) - RZTE_TF+=
AZ+—B8 B RBRTEHBOAARE
600,0007T - MEAF AR & RIRTTEHKR T
f£84.8% (ZZ— NLF : AR ¥4,100,000
L) RZEZTEF+_A=+—H 'K
SEMR e RIRTTHERD61.4%K%30.6%
DRAABTRARBAE R _FF
+-—A=+—H AEEEHEEHAA
R #130,100,000t (ZE— N F: AR
114,200,0007T) ° FTE EF I A A REEE
B FEEERER—FRNEE-

BERYE —ToRFFH




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was
-523.8% (2019: 466.4%). Gearing ratio was calculated as total
debt divided by the total equity. Total debt refers to the total
liability minus the sum of tax payable, dividend payable and
deferred tax liability.

Capital Structure

As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020, the Company
had 1,486,859,608 shares in issue and a paid-up capital of
approximately RMB99,310,000.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the bills payables were secured
by a pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
approximately RMB3.8 million (2019: RMB3.9 million). As at
31 December 2020, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by a pledge of the Group’s buildings with carrying
amount of approximately RMB3.6 million (2019: RMB6.1
million), leasehold land and the land of investment properties
with carrying amounts of approximately RMB4.2 million (2019:
right-of-use assets of RMB26.2 million) and approximately
RMB31.2 million (2019: Nil) respectively.

The building of investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately RMB28.8 million was pledged to an
independent third party for a loan facility of RMB20 million.
The loan was not yet utilized as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

During the year of 2020, a supplier had filed lawsuit against
the overdue payment of Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co., Ltd.
("Quanzhou Baofeng”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, with total amount of approximately RMBO0.5
million (the “Amount in Question”) and the first trial held that
Quanzhou Baofeng shall repay the Amount in Question plus
interest.

Based on the best estimation of the management of the
Company, Quanzhou Baofeng has valid ground in opposing
the Amount in Question in the judgement of the above
said case. As the lawsuit is in the process of appeal, the
corresponding legal fee and interest are uncertain. Accordingly,
no provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statement.

Except as described above, there was no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the revenue of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
risk and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure if necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of
approximately 600 employees (2019: 740 employees), with
total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2020,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
RMB64,616,000 (2019: RMB62,951,000). The Group’s
emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employee and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee
and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Company also adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 8 January 2011 to
motivate and reward its Directors and eligible employees.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription of New
Shares in 2018

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 9
November 2018, 12 November 2018, 8 March 2019 and 29
May 2019, Venus Capital Fund and Mr. Chiu Hsin-Wang (“Mr.
Chiu"), the two independent subscribers, subscribed for a
total of 182,800,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) of US$0.01 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.27 per subscription share which were completed on 8
March 2019 (the “2018 Subscription”). The closing market
price was HK$0.33 per Share on the date on which the terms
of the 2018 Subscription were fixed. The gross proceeds from
the 2018 Subscription was approximately HK$49,356,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB43,175,000), and the net
proceeds (after deducting the relevant expenses incurred in
the 2018 Subscription) were approximately HK$49,136,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB42,982,000). The net
subscription price, after deducting relevant expenses, was
approximately HK$0.27 per subscription share.

The Directors considered that the 2018 Subscription
represented an opportunity to raise additional funding for
research and development of carbon-based energy storage
batteries in order to develop new markets and new business,
and provide working capital to the Group to meet any financial
obligations of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

BB R ()

Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription of New —E-N\ERABFROFFEREFER
Shares in 2018 (continued) ®(4&)
The utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2020 is R-ZE-FF+-_A=+—H FIEHE

set out as follows:

FENBBBEREINMT

Amount
of the net
Amount proceeds Balance of the
of the net utilised net proceeds
proceeds during the unutilised
Intended utilised up to year ended as at 31
use of the 31 December 31 December December
net proceeds 2019 2020 2020
S
BE —2-%F #
e t=f c®=®F
+=A =+-—-H +=A
=+—-Hi LFE =+—-H
FENEFE CDHAMSNX CBRAREIR XBAMEBR
Nature (E3=1 REMAZE THIEFELE BIESE EHIFEEH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR
Research and development  #ff % i & F &
of carbon application (Ktat1)
products (Note 1) 18,853 15,709 3,144 -
Settlement of payables EERNEARRK
owing to Bluestone (F&8)BRAA
Technologies (Cayman) ([EEAR]) R ER
Limited ("Bluestone”) FRIE
(Note 2) (Kizt2) 8,678 8,678 - -
General working capital —REEES
(Note 3) (Ffat3) 15,451 15,451 - -
Total: Bt 42,982 39,838 3,144 -
BERY —T-ZTFER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) M EREE)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription of New —E-NEFTAEBTROFEFEEER
Shares in 2018 (continued) ®(E)

Notes: ffat -

After detailed research on equipment procurement, the
Group decided to use production equipment from battery
manufacturers in the market for the Group's production, so it
only needs to set up a battery research and development line
which requires less fund than expected. As a result, the intended
use of the net proceeds of approximately HK$9,971,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,678,000) was changed to
“Settlement of payables owing to Bluestone” and approximately
HK$9,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,726,000)
was changed to “General working capital” respectively from
the original intended use for the “Research and development
of carbon application products” during the year ended 31
December 2019. The remaining balance of the net proceeds
allocated for the “Research and development of carbon
application products” was fully utilised during the year ended
31 December 2020.

After detailed research on equipment procurement, the
Group decided to use production equipment from battery
manufacturers in the market for the Group's production, so it
only needs to set up a battery research and development line
which requires less fund than expected. As a result, the intended
use of the net proceeds of approximately HK$9,971,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,678,000) was changed from
“Research and development of carbon application products” to
“Settlement of payables owing to Bluestone” during the year
ended 31 December 2019. The balance of the net proceeds
allocated for the “Settlement of payables owing to Bluestone”
was fully utilised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

After detailed research on equipment procurement, the
Group decided to use production equipment from battery
manufacturers in the market for the Group’s production, so it
only needs to set up a battery research and development line
which requires less fund than expected. As a result, the intended
use of the net proceeds of approximately HK$9,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB7,726,000) was changed from
“Research and development of carbon application products” to
“General working capital” during the year ended 31 December
2019. The balance of the net proceeds allocated for the
“General working capital” was fully utilised during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Existing Business

The global outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic is expected
to continue to have a negative impact on the global retail
market in 2021. However, it is expected that the retail
market will recover from the shock as many countries started
the COVID-19 vaccinations and plan to ease the restrictive
measures. The Group expects the delayed orders of OEM
customers in last year will resume in 2021.

China’s most recent ecommerce boom did not decelerate
even after the COVID-19 epidemic was under control, the
consumers do not lose interest in online purchasing and will
likely maintain the same or perhaps higher levels of online
purchasing forevermore. Hence, the Group would focus on
online sales in the PRC and the design and sales of indoor
slippers in 2021.

For other graphene application products, the Group is still
negotiating with a potential customer on the sales terms of
air sterilizers. For the carbon-based energy storage batteries,
the Group has sent samples to our cooperative parties for
joint production for testing and met all the required standards.
As the Group would focus and allocate more resources on
the manufacturing of large size Cast-mono wafers and high
efficiency HJT solar cells in 2021, the mass production schedule
of carbon-based energy storage batteries would be delayed.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

New Business

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
25 January, 29 January and 11 March 2021, the Group
successfully utilized casting technology to produce Cast-mono
wafers, which was then used to manufacture HJT solar cells
with an energy conversion efficiency exceeding 24.0% in
September 2020. Besides, the Group entered into a casting
silicon furnaces purchase agreement with the subsidiary of
GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited on 29 January 2021, and
entered into a license letter of intent with GS-Solar (Fujian)
Company Limited and its subsidiary in relation to the patents
and process techniques of HIT solar cells, together with a lease
framework agreement in respect of the lease of production
equipment for 500MW high efficiency HJT solar cells and
a plant located in Fujian Province on 11 March 2021. The
challenges in the photovoltaic industry are often substantial
capital intensity and rapid technological obsolescence,
resulting in difficult investment payback. Through the above
arrangements, the Group adopts an asset-light business model
as it transitions to new businesses in Cast-mono wafers and
Cast-mono HIJT solar cells.

HJT has increasingly been discussed in the solar market and
is believed to have an energy conversion efficiency higher
than that of the passivated emitter and rear cell technology
("PERC"). The Group believes that achieving similar or even
lower manufacturing costs than PERC would be key to a
successful transition from PERC to HIT in the solar industry.
As the cost of silicon wafers generally accounts for more than
half of total manufacturing cost of HJT solar cells, it is common
for manufacturers to attempt reducing silicon wafers cost by
continuously boosting production capacity, in order to benefit
from economies of scale. Leveraging on its many years of
investments in research and development of materials science,
the Group has successfully developed a new technology which
utilizes the lower cost casting technology to manufacture
Cast-mono wafers with performances that are very similar to
regular wafers produced with monocrystalline silicon using the
Czochralski method (“CZ-mono”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)
New Business (continued)

1.

Cast-mono Wafers

According to the 2019-2020 China Photovoltaic Industry
Annual Report, Cast-mono wafers accounted for less
than 3% market share of photovoltaic industry in 2019
in the PRC, while CZ-mono wafers accounted for more
than 60%. In recent years, the latter has benefited from
advancing manufacturing process and rising energy
conversion efficiency. On the other hand, traditional
casting method suffered from excessive impurities found
in the wafers, which in turn results in a lower yield (often
around 60%) of usable wafers. With its new proprietary
technology and process know-how, the Group has
managed to reduce such impurities, with a goal to raising
its yield to over 90%, effectively lowering production
costs.

Cast-mono HJT Solar Cells

Recently, a few suppliers have started utilizing Cast-
mono in PERC cells in order to benefit from lower
manufacturing cost and energy conversion efficiency
similar to that of CZ-mono PERC cells. The Group believes
that higher energy conversion efficiency of leading HJT
coupled with our innovative Cast-mono wafer technology
could well position the next-generation Cast-mono HJT
solar cells to compete with the mainstream CZ-mono
PERC cells.

Near-term Goals

The Group has recently procured 290 sets of casting
silicon furnaces and its maximum production capacity
is expected to be over 7 gigawatts located in Xuzhou
City, Jiangsu Province. Modification work on the casting
silicon furnaces would be commenced to incorporate
our proprietary Cast-mono wafer technology to produce
Cast-mono wafers. The Group plans to use such wafers
to produce Cast-mono HIJT solar cells in the plant in
Putian City, Fujian Province, under the aforementioned
lease and technology license collaboration with GS-
Solar Group. In the case that demand for HIT solar
modules arises from potential customers in the midst
of the Group's promotion of HIJT, the Group currently
plans to outsource the production of HJT solar modules
to external module manufacturers using HJT solar cells
produced by the Group. In addition, the Group will
actively collaborate with players in the photovoltaic
industry to promote the applications of Cast-mono HJT
globally.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBHE

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020, save for the deviations
as discussed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors
and each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

° Executive Directors:

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (re-designated from the
Vice-chairman to the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer on 26 February 2021)

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

Dr. Xu Zhi (appointed as Chief Technology Officer on
26 February 2021)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
° Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

e Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
59 to 62 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and
extensive experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the
financial year ended 31 December 2020. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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TERERBHE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings and the
annual general meeting (“AGM") held during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 are summarised as follows:

BEEg (&)

REZEZE-E-_FTF+-_A=1+—HILFHF
EmBTEFee2 AREAFRE ([
HBEFRg|)OEFLsFEanT:

Number of
board meetings Number of AGM
attended/held in attended/held in

2020 2020
SR-RFURES CB-BREHES
BINEES HITHRE
= N BERERE

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung RFHESE 5/5 1/1
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRREE 5/5 1/1
Dr. Xu Zhi (appointed on FEETE (R

26 February 2021) “A-+NBEZE) 0/5 0/1
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. LIN Weihuan MEE T+ 5/5 11
Independent Non-Executive BYKHTES

Directors
Ms. AN Na L+ 4/5 1/1
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e R 5/5 1/1
Mr. CHEN Shaohua Bk 2 S A 5/5 1/1
PROFESSIONAL TRAINING OF THE COMPANY NAEMEZEHEIZI

SECRETARY

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary of the Company must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year. The
company secretary, Mr. Ip Pui Sum, provided his training
records to the Company, indicating that he has taken no less
than 21 hours of relevant professional training by means of
attending seminars and reading relevant guideline materials
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
include the development and reviewing of policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, development and reviewing of the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their
duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is summarised below:

TEERERE
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EXZQNBERTERERRBRE (BFEL
MRB M+ D IMEEFEER) B
BHERBHEREABREERLET
FIBELRMEERTE EBEEFLAEMRE
BEEMEINIEFEERES HIERER
HERRNEERESENRTERRERFM
(MB) RBEREFALERERTA A
RERNARAREERERRETIEREDN
R

EENREERERS

EREFHRDEFEIRER IEE
REFEMB R BREESENR
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EAREAH MAEECEB2MEI
HRIZRBEAHEEXRE R RRIIEARE
EBREFEHRBENENN T2 M
SEEREE-

REZE2_ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HItHF
B SEEERIHERIEIGCSBENT

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in relation
to the business or Directors’

duties
HERRERD
EERENERE/
iE/BERE
ERMER
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung RFREE v
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRREE v
Dr. Xu Zhi (Appointed on 26 February 2021) FEBL(RZZZ-$-A-T BEZA) N/A 5@
Ms. LIN Weihuan EBRL v
Ms. AN Na Zif 5t v
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HERAK v
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROERE v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Mr. Zheng Jingdong
has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer throughout the year ended 31 December
2020. Since 26 February 2021, Mr. Leung Tsz Chung has been
appointed as Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The Directors consider that vesting two
roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the
Group’s business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. The
balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently
comprises 3 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and
3 independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a
strong independence element in its composition.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group’s strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board has three independent
non-executive Directors, Professor Zhao Jinbao, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Ms. An Na. Among them, Mr. Chen Shaohua
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications
and financial management expertise in compliance with the
requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules.
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The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles provide that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has three committees, namely, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with
the Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange
website and the Company’s website at www.baofengmodern.
com. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F.,, OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, 93-
103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The company
secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
customer complaints, to the chief executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and review and monitor
appointment of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Shaohua, Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Chen Shaohua was
the chairperson of the audit committee as at 31 December
2020. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
The audit committee held 3 meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 to review interim and annual
financial results and reports, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and scope of work and appointment of external
auditors.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:

TEERERE

ERREBENHELEFBET

Members KB Attendance of Meeting
SRLERR

Mr. CHEN Shaohua PRAOZESE (BREEEER)
(Chairperson of audit committee) 3/3
Professor ZHAO Jinbao IR 3/3
Ms. AN Na Zif 2+ 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr.
Chen Shaohua as at 31 December 2020. The remuneration
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended 31
December 2020 to assess the performance of the executive
Directors, review and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:
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Ms. AN Na (Chairperson of TR+ (FMEERSEF)
remuneration committee) 11
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e RN 1/1
Mr. CHEN Shaohua PRAOZERHE A
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management of the Company by
band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
HEE (ARY)

BETEEXEBISKE BE_T _TF
T+ A=T—HUIEFEARARSHEREA
EMFEHFFHOT -

Number of individuals

AR

2,000,000 - 2,500,000
3,000,000 - 3,500,000

Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(@]

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board;

to review the terms of reference, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

develop, review and disclose the policy for nomination
of directors, as appropriate, in the Company’s corporate
governance report annually; and

to implement and review the board diversity policy
("Board Diversity Policy”).
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The nomination committee comprised the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhao Jinbao (the
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Shaohua
and Ms. An Na as at 31 December 2020. The nomination
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year ended
31 December 2020 to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the AGM.

The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are
as follows:

Members RE

TEERKSE

R-ZF-_TFE+-_A=+—H RREE8
EH-ERBUIIFRTEFTHESREE (R
2EBEEIF) ROERERLTIFL LA
K-RRREBEERBE_T-_ZF+_H
T -HLEVBFREARAETT —REE
UHEENZEREFTREEZSE BF
EZENRE REMEBKA KBTI
TEFENBEYM UYHNBRAEFAE L
EREENESTSROIES

REZESHELEFBOT:

Attendance of Meeting
ERHERBR

Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Chairperson of
nomination committee)

Mr. CHEN Shaohua PR 2 S A
Ms. AN Na Z I+

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Group considered
the diversity of the Board members can be achieved through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.
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Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates of the Board members will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The nomination committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The nomination committee shall consider certain factors,
which are not exhaustive and the Board has discretion if
it considers appropriate, in assessing the suitability of the
proposed candidate regarding the appointment of directors or
re-appointment of any existing Board member(s).

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
nomination committee shall make reference to certain criteria
including reputation for integrity; accomplishment, experience
and reputation in the business and industry; commitment
in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
businesses of the Group; diversity policy of the Company; in
case of independent non-executive director, the independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and any
other relevant factors as may be determined by the nomination
committee or the Board from time to time as appropriate.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

AFEER

BEEFENEAERE-RINZTlLE
BAEE BRERETRMIER  Fik XL
RBEES Rk BELR XL MH
ERFBER AREFE MR RHERRME
AR EFREME R REHRAENRER
LAAREZSRENER ROBRES
EREZTTENERaUAREZTENFE T
SRAEE-—NZTLEE FMIERE -

REAZBEHIHRNEFEXNEZ T
B NHEREFEXEZTIERRITZ

B
RABUR

REZESEMGHBAREARTEALE
mAEERENTInEMNREEEEKE
B AERAETHER ZFRRAIFFEE
B AEZFERRBEERBKRIPBERE -

RIAGHRBEREANBEAER REEZE
SARSEETIRE BRAGHNEE XK
RAITERKE KRB E  HAKENE
B TRRERE BB MET 2 AR AR
AIZTTCBR B IFRMITESEMS - &
MR ANEINMRTARE 2 BILNE AR IR
FEEBEREZTEAURITERBEEENT
MEMAERRE-



Corporate Governance Report

Nomination procedures
a) Appointment of new director

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The nomination committee may select candidates
for directorship from various channels, including but
not limited to internal promotion, re-designation,
referral by other member of the management
and external recruitment agents, and should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If an independent non-executive
director is to be appointed, the nomination
committee will also assess and consider whether
the candidate can satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the nomination committee should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The nomination committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable. Where the Board
proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

e  the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive
director will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

RERF

TEERERE

a) ZAEHES

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REEEE RSB ARES
PR IEIR A BEEE - BIEER
RAPEIET - BIE KSR
R B RO IR IR
GREREE AT EEN RS
RARE A B A ER (KRS
)1 > BRI b R ST R 08
EA LB ZEEARTA
BEAES  WRETE TS
FEE EEEEENETRR
EBIREAZDTA FH BRI
BB IR

B R —EXZEE BrR
BN REBZEBERREALT]
MEERBUKREANZERE
= (WER) oI IR0 E £ X
o

REZBSHERENREEER
BAREEEFREFERY
2 (Es) - BEESRIR
RAS HIRERBREETREAL
RBIFATES ARAKRRK
BB PTBEP B B RSB e e,
kRt AR K 1 AR - R DI ER

e MUY EZBALHNR
B EFZERREELK
2 AT H IR B A R A A 58
RZBANTBELALH
REA

s MWMREREBUIENITES
HHEEEELR (KAL)
FHRARIMNES EFE
REBZBANTDAIRAR
HFEETESFEENR
A

BERYE —ToRFFH




Corporate Governance Report
TERERBHE

e the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of
the Board.

(iv)  For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the nomination committee should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.

b)  Re-election of director at general meeting
(i)  The nomination committee should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of
the retiring director and his/her level of participation
and performance on the Board.

(i) The nomination committee should also review
and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above. If
an independent non-executive director is subject
to the re-election, the nomination committee will
also assess and consider whether the independent
non-executive director will continue to satisfy the
independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules.

(i) The nomination committee should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.
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The nomination committee will review the nomination policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the nomination
policy. The nomination committee will discuss any revisions to
the nomination policy that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors' Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company's financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with updates
from time to time on the Company's performance, positions
and prospects.

The Directors have been aware of the capital deficiency of
the Company that may cast significant issue on the going
concern and the Directors had considered all available source
of funding. The Directors have made an assessment on the
liquidity position of the Group as to whether the Group is able
to continue as a going concern for at least twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. On 24 March 2021,
the Company entered into a share subscription agreement
(2021 Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third
party, in relation to the subscription for 20,000,000 new
Shares at HK$4 per share (the “2021 Subscription”). The
net proceeds from the 2021 Subscription will amount to
HK$79,700,000. On the same day, the Company entered into
a placing agreement (”Placing Agreement”) with a placing
agent, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to place
through the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to
100,000,000 new Shares at HK$4 per share (the “Placing”).
The maximum net proceeds from the Placing will amount
to HK$397,860,000. On 26 March 2021, share subscription
deposit in the sum of HK$80,000,000 had been received. In
the opinion of the Directors, the 2021 Subscription and Placing
Agreement are expected to be completed in April 2021. The
Directors are in the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statement on a going concern basis.

TEERERE

RAEZBEHK (WER) @22 BOR AR
REFRME -REZBEEHTRIELBRER
TAAESEELNER YAEEER
I ARER AR TS MLk -

EEHUBRRNELE

EERUBRBRNUBRESE
EEHARSREBE_T_TF+ A
ST HLEFEMBHRERNEE EREE
RFMRRARB R ANEBEOER AR
AEENEERRERE-

EEECRESSERHMTNEERE
B EEFS A28 SHENR
RAIMBHRRELANBOTG - RN2EH
HEHRBE RARARAEEGMAKETDT
B F H B RT

EFECNBE ST RO FELEEK
EAHELEECEEMBAAES R
F-BEEERNAEERNRBE AR RT
HAEBEETRRESREAZEL =@
AEERGE R E-—F=F—+mH -
KABE—RBLE =] ) R 1%
Z(ZZZ—FREHZE)) RABFHERR
& %47 7T 53 820,000,000 # ik  ([=
T —FREEE]) T —FRHEE
18 2 AT 1S B F 515 £79,700,0007 7T ©
REBR  AARHE—AEERIEF LA EH
Z([REEmzl) Bl AARERER
BREERBUERERNDABTENREERS
100,000,000/ ¥ & fn ([ER&E HE]) o e
EEEMEHIEFER= 1 4397,860,000
BT - RZE_—F=A=+/<B KHRA
#E12480,000,000/8 TE WER - EERAE -
T FREFEMEEHERERR S
T FNARK -EERE BFELE
EEGRGAVBRRBEE -

BERYE —ToRFFH




Corporate Governance Report

TXER®RSE

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group has
an internal audit function. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems include a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board and effective employment of the resources of the
Company, in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and
damages made to the Company’s assets, and prevent against
errors and fraud.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
and audit committee conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
based on information derived from discussions with the
management of the Company and its external auditor. The
Board and audit committee believe that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

EXTAERBEREEHENZEEAMHN
BIFRBF FS REERI BB R REHIEER
TEREVBRR BEAAWENAEE
MBS AR I AR R B A% BUAT B H 8 B 75 3R
RE T BRI AFRAOTE T AZHER

==
=]

[2 By B IR I N B EE 4=
EEeAETHERFERNARRE R KA
EERE UREAEEEERBRRFZE -
AEEREANPETBE-ETTRER
ZEgNTHETRT BRASERR
EERASETE IR - BBERER
NEEREROETENCELEBER
RESHPNBEHREMEBNAL &
HFTEZEEHTEBNRE BEEK
NMEERE RS TR RS MBUR AR AR
RIEBRNEYER UHILERER EE&
2B B IESER RRFEIT AR Ao

#@i_%_%¢+_ﬂ*+—5¢%ﬁ
FE EFSMEZZEEREEAR

B K AN B AR BRAD B 5T &R P LIS mﬁ
A M A E A B IR R R P AU
2 o %%Aﬁﬁﬁfiéﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬂMa
BREANNEERRAEKLRHARE R 5

TFREMBEAREE  BREMB &K
BREEUNEREERE LNERT
R ANRABIEE  REPERT KR RS B
%AEW%E&%%M&%EM%&&E

sy
B o
e



Corporate Governance Report

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of
activities, responsibility and authority for each department
and its management staff within the Group. The Group has
a defined goal for each department to accomplish. These
goals were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to
the management through the executive Directors, and will
be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and take any necessary actions for the
improvement of business activities.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the Company’s auditor, Confucius International
CPA Limited was RMB1,511,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy on 20 February 2019. The
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. Any declaration of final
dividends for the year will be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders. In proposing any dividend pay-out,
the Board shall take into account the following factors:

—  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
— the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion

plans;

— retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;
— general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have impact on the business or

financial performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBHE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.baofengmodern.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus @Sheung
Wan, 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHT

Convening an EGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Group arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
(the “Report”) covers information on the Group’s principal
activities in the manufacture and sale of slippers, sandals,
casual footwear, graphene-based ethylene-vinyl acetate foam
material and slippers, graphene deodorizing and sterilizing
chips for air purifiers and air conditioners and graphene air
sterilizers in the PRC. This Report is prepared in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. This Report mainly
summarises the environment and social performance of the
Group during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. The scope of the information disclosed in this Report
and the statistical methods are consistent with the previous
year.

The Company strives to safeguard and balance the interests
of each stakeholder and follows the operating principle of
“taste of life, happy production”. Facing the changes and
challenges of business environment, the Group never forget
to commit corporate social responsibility while pursuing
growth. In respect of the respective area of product safety,
product quality, energy saving and environmental protection,
social welfare and employee care, the Group will ensure
that the business operations can create value for the social,
human and natural capital, and actively fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

The Board is responsible for determining the ESG risks of the
Group, formulating ESG strategies, ensuring the establishment
and maintenance of an effective internal control system
on ESG and conducting regular analysis and independent
assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
aforementioned system through internal audit functions.
The Board have identified the material ESG issues from the
annual materiality assessment exercise that involved both
the key employees and external stakeholders. The Group's
environmental and social related impacts and the target
to reduce the negative impacts of material ESG issues are
reported in quantitative numbers that are specific and
measurable.

The production and the major business of the Group are based
in the PRC. Therefore, the information and data included in
the Report are the information and data of the Group that
originates in the PRC.

B-HERERKS

ARFE - HekEARA(NRRE e kE
A FHRE ([ARFHE]) BEAREB LN AF
BRAREHE RE -KEE AEKEL
BEERR G REME AR RIEE AR
EROF(EEMEFAN A EGR R REED
FRAZEGERRESMNAEEREENE
ZEBHNER - AREDRBEB I L™
RAMES -+ EEMRR LS RER
WEESIREMBR - AREETEB A
TE-EF—A—HE_ZE-_FTF+-A
T+ —HBREBEREEER -ARFERESE
REE KA A EHE EFERE e

RARBOANRERFEHSHFLSERNZ I
B TR AE  RERE | M EES
FEEZEHIRENECmEBkE LZJ:EXE
MR NREEFTTEECELSEE-
B\Fuuﬁi EmEE  fERER WiA’“

=B THESEES L REERRE
HEBEkAtE ANKRBABEREIERE
B ERETEELEEF

EFXSARETAEEERRE ?i/_\&
EVRMER - BIFTIRIE - 2 NE VAR
MERAEER L REFHIRE ﬁ:/a\&ﬁ
BRI ANIELIE R A MBI NS
%I 8E - TE BRHETT 0 AT NI AL AT A Al &
RERETHAMBER -EFSEW I RER
BT RINBH/OENFEEEHETHIME
FREEANRSE HLERERER A%
EHRELMENEETERBDEKNR
B HekErcmdAETENBERHMN
BERRAHENELLHTE®R-

AEENEERETBEXRHHETBEET
MU AR E R E R RBIEA RAEEET
BEEZ BIREHR -

BERYE —ToRFFH




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRS

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT EhENSH

The Group continues to establish diversified communication AREBFBBEEEMHEEZYZTLERE
channels with its stakeholders to proactively understand their HoRRR T MHEARERd e T TNEEN
expectations and concerns regarding the social responsibility FROBMAEEEEFMNEEENER K
of the Group. We have paid great attention to the valuable EEEEEATHENENE R
opinions of stakeholders. The Group believes that through — ST - EF RERPEH S EE 2 5EE - 5
understanding their opinions would assist us to analyze, BUREREAGELGEERE HMKE
identify and revise the aspects of corporate social responsibility TRIEAEETFTEHHER BT E
in order to continuously improve and raise our comprehensive SHFRKLEBEN2E R

corporate management ability and standard. The table

below sets forth the expectations and concerns which major

stakeholders are more concerned with and the relevant

engagement methods:

Expectation and Means of Communication and
Stakeholders Concern issues Response
BOE HERBTIEE BERERMDOE
Investors Return on investment — General meetings
REE &% & [ - BRXg

Government or
regulatory authorities

B ok B B

Employees

(=]

Sustainable business growth
ARBEERNEBER
Compliance to listing requirements
e EmRE

Timely and transparent reporting

R FERANRE

Compliance with law and
regulations

BPRRNMOER

Fulfilment of tax obligations
BITHIR &

Promoting regional economic
development and employment
HEMEREBEER MRS

Remuneration and welfares

M e

Working environment and
occupational safety
TERREMBELZSE

Career development opportunities

BEZRES

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

— Financial results announcements and
annual report

- UBEELERFERS

— Published announcements

- BEHEAE

— Websites of the Company/the Stock
Exchange

- NAEEE PR A8 U

— Response to queries or investigation

- HEEHNmE

— Participation in government meetings or
seminars

- ZERFERIMATE

— Regular declaration

- EHIERHR

— Performance evaluation and training
sessions

- REEHE RIEIIERE

— Employee performance assessment

- BIBEMERZ

— Internal meetings and announcements

- NBBELBE
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Means of Communication and

Stakeholders Concern issues Response
BoE HERBAIERE BEREREDE
Customers — Safe and high quality products and - Regular communication via email and
%P services conference calls

- RERREEEMRRE - BRSBREFESZNTHER

— Stable and long—term business Contracts

relationship - &M

- BEAREIMNEBRBER — Business visit

— Reasonable price - BMEFED

- AEER

— Corporate reputation

- EEE
Suppliers — Stable and long—term business — Business meetings and conference calls
HER relationship - ¥BeRkEREgER

Community and general
public
HaRR

- REARBONEBHER
— Corporate reputation
- EEE

— Prompt payment cycles
- K R

— Community involvement

- HER2H

— Economic development

- REER

— Understand our environmental and
social impact to the society

- TEREMELEELENRERME

By 488
wE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Through communications with respective stakeholders, the
Group understands stakeholders’ expectations and concerns
and responds to the feedback of stakeholders in a timely
manner, determines the disclosure highlights of this Report
and proactively responds to the expectations and concerns of
respective stakeholders. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters
of concern are presented in the following materiality matrix:

— Business visit

- BAXRFED

— Charity activities and social investment
- BRERIRUEKRE
— Participate in community employment

- ZEMERE

EERMTML
AEBBBEERNENRR THEND
EHHEEF R WD EH B RERE
e EARSHEER  BIROE
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ERMBEONERSZ2HENUTHERNE
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RIE HERERRS

Materiality Matrix & 2 14 45 &

@® Development and training @® Supply chain management
R HrEsER

IR @® Employee benefits @® Quality management

5 B EIEF BRED

T @® Occupational Health and safety

WERERES
Eaal
fai
L] @® Community investment ® Use of resources @ Data privacy and intellectual
1:%;1 HERE ﬁfﬁ@‘iﬁﬁ _ property protection
& & ® Anti-corruption ERIFLEE R A E R E
e £ k&S
EE) 2 @ Noise control
p s REED
% @® Waste water discharge
S RERBERR
2 @ Prevention of child and forced @® Greenhouse gas emission
‘3 labour B EREEEN
g W fHIEET KRB H) @® Diversity and equal
§_ 2 opportunities
E 3 SR TFERE
@® Solid waste generation
EEERREY
Low 1K Medium High &
Importance to the Group ¥ RSB EBE
A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS A. BEBEFE

The Group always pays attention to environmental
protection. In respect of environmental management,

AEE-HERRRERE - EREE
BE BT NFRABLIER

the 1ISO14001 environmental management system has
been established and implemented since 2006, with
annual review supervised by third-party certification
institutions and regulatory authorities. The Group
formulates appropriate environmental management
operation control procedures, commits to environmental
protection through continuous enhancement on
production technology and product quality, introduction
and promotion of energy conservation, waste reduction,
clean production, improvement on pollution prevention
and control technology, and material recycling and reuse.
In 2020, the Group invested a total of approximately
RMB172,000 for energy saving, environmental
protection, and emission and waste reduction. The Group
adheres to green and low-carbon development principle,
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

protects the environment as its mission, and integrates
environmental protection with enterprise development.
The Group strictly follows relevant national environmental
laws and regulations to minimize the impact of
production and operating activities to the environment to
the greatest extent, strives to achieve resource recycling
and non-hazardous objectives during production and
operation process and continues to build a green and
harmonious environment. Climate-change issues do not
have significant impact on the Group’s business activities.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, there were no
material non-compliances concerning environmental laws
and regulations during the reporting period.

- ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM CERTIFICATE
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R-HERER

S

A.1 Emissions Management

The Group strives to carry out clean production,
abides by the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant laws
and regulations, and reduces the environmental
impact of emissions generated from the production
and operation process. The Group ensures that the
emissions generated from production and operation
activities are in compliance with national standards
and the requirements of local environmental
protection authorities of the PRC. In the meantime,
the Group formulates and implements daily
inspection of pollution treatment facilities,
and formulates monthly, quarterly and annual
maintenance plans to ensure emission treatment
facilities are under normal operation, so as to
reduce the impact of emissions on the environment.

As summarised in Table 1 below, the Group’s
emissions during the reporting period included:
greenhouse gas (“GHG") and waste water.

A1l BEHMER

REBBORBRLEE BT
(PEARKEMBERFREEL)
FHEAMEBEEERARE R
DEAEMEEBETELEND
BOFIERAIRBZE - NEH
IR A EE AR SRS R D2 BEIR YY)
B EPEBEREERE IRMR
EBPIHARTE o R B - AN B HIFT
RETERRESLRIERE
YHERE FERFERE
2 URERBES R IERBETTIE

AR ERRENF
2.

RIEBRA  NEBOHRYIE
S REREB(DEEREIM

BEK A TR —e

Table 1: Total emissions of the Group in 2019 and K AEF-E-hER-_ZFT—
2020 %%ﬁiﬁﬁﬂzi
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEZZF —T-NE CZBZEE —TNF
Intensity Intensity @
(Tonnes/ (Tonnes/
Emissions EBY Unit Bfz Amount Amount RMB'000) RMB'000)
%'E{E(U %’ig(ﬂ
o (WE_/ . (g
EHE BmE AR%®TR) AREFL)
GHG BERE
Direct emission R332
(Scope 1) (#E1)
Company car ol REFH  Tonnes B
consumption (KHra2)
(note 2) 30.97 25.52 0.0003 0.0002
Natural gas AAR, Tonnes
(note 2) (Ktat2) 678.58 1,241.89 0.0061 0.0073
Indirect emission e
(Scope 2) (&[E2)
Externally- SNEE S Tonnes ME
purchased (Bfit3)
electricity
(note 3) 2,258.90 2,768.69 0.0202 0.0163
Wastewater BEIK Tonnes 26,328.00 32,018.00 0.2353 0.1887
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Notes:

1. The calculation for intensity is the emissions amount
divided by revenue in the Group’s reporting period.

2. The calculation of the GHG is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”
from greenhouse gas protocol.

3. The externally-purchased electricity emission factor
refers to the 2019 Emission Factors for Purchased
Electricity in Mainland China as published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China.

GHG Emission

GHG included carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide, which were mainly from externally-purchased
electricity and fuel. The Group is in compliance with
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”
and other relevant laws and regulations, recycling
certain particles generated during the production
process to minimize exhaust gas emission to the
greatest extent. The Group uses clean natural gas
and has installed exhaust gas treatment equipment
on production boilers to effectively control exhaust
gas and soot generated during the combustion of
boilers and ensure the emission concentration meets
the standard stipulated in the “Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”.
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Wastewater Discharge

Wastewater generated from the production process
and daily domestic sewage from employees will
be collected for further processing. No sewage is
untreated or illegally released to external waters.
The related procedures are in compliance with the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Solid Wastes Generation

The main solid wastes produced during the
production process are remaining materials and
scrap materials of finished products produced by
the Group. To minimize the amount of solid waste
generated during the production process, the
Group strictly abides by the principles of recycling
and reuse, as well as the provisions of the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”. The Group carries out hazard elimination
treatment, classification and recycling on solid
wastes pursuant to the “Solid Waste Management
Operations Guide” of the Group, including (i)
recycling and reuse of grinding powder, scrap; (ii)
selling of cardboard boxes, paper products to other
paper mills for recycling and reuse; and (iii) unified
recycling of domestic wastes for hazard elimination
treatment, etc.

Noise Control

The source of noise is mainly from the noise
generated by mechanical operations during the
production process. The equipments with larger
noise are all placed indoor, while noise reduction,
sound insulation, shock absorption and other
measures are adopted in order to comply with the
relevant provisions of the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”.
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B-HERERKS

A2. Use of Resources A2. ERERA

Summarised in Table 2 below, the resources used by AEERBEHAFAERANE

the Group during the reporting period were energy, SR A LR - K z&ggugggggﬁ

water, paper and packaging materials. BRI R =

Table 2: Total resources consumption of the Group RO AEE-_T—NFE=Z

in 2019 and 2020 :%E%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁi

2020 2019 2020 2019
—7—7$ ig_ﬂﬁ —7—7$ :%é_j—l,i
Resources ER Unit Efz Amount Amount  Intensity @ Intensity
(Unit/ (Unit/
RMB'000) RMB'000)
RE g BEO HEY
(B/ARY (BE/ARE
Fr) )
Energy A
Direct consumption B IZH#E
Petrol A Litres A Ft 13,632.49 11,236.00 0.1219 0.0662
Natural gas ARR M: AKX 310,396.00  568,067.00 2.7746 3.3477
Indirect consumption &I JE#E
Electricity EW)| Kwh TR 2,851,782.00 3,441,082.00 25.4922 20.2790

Water 7K Tonnes [ 26,853.00 32,617.00 0.2400 0.1922

Paper ok Tonnes [ 2.37 1.85 0.0000 0.0000

Packaging BEME

By plastic BRHE Tonnes [ 6.95 8.99 0.0001 0.0001
By paper R Tonnes [ 457,72 471.69 0.0041 0.0028

Note: Bzt -

1 The calculation for intensity is the resources 1 RENFETX AR EERE
consumption amount divided by revenue in the BN A TR 2 B DA AR ©
Group'’s reporting period.

The Group strives to fully recycle resources as REBR IR EERMEMEE

much as possible during product development and ‘RS BT S EERNA

production process, constantly pursuing energy BR - T ESRBIRET AR HE -

conservation and emission reduction.
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The Group has implemented “Green Procurement”
policy to actively encourage suppliers to establish
production management system with environmental
protection and energy saving, purchase
environmentally friendly raw materials in higher
priority through procurement mechanism and supply
chain management, so as to facilitate suppliers to
reduce waste of resources and pollution.

The Group also regularly inspects and reviews
energy consumption, through internal policies and
advanced technologies to prevent wastage so as to
conserve energy and resources. Specific measures
include: (i) reduction of natural gas consumption
through the installation of boiler thermal oil
recycling pipeline for heat recycling and reuse; (ii)
reduction of hydraulic oil consumption by the use
of hydraulic oil precipitation; and (iii) reduction of
raw material input by recycling the grinding powder
of grinding workshop and the scrap of cutting and
clipping workshop. Other actively advocated routine
resource conservation measures include: (i) replacing
high energy-consumption equipment with the more
energy-saving one; (ii) turning off unnecessary
equipment, lighting and air conditioning not in use;
(iii) strengthening inspection and maintenance of
faucets, water pipes and water storage facilities and
other water supply systems to avoid any leakage;
and (iv) announcing company information in
electronic form (such as e-mail or electronic bulletin)
if possible and reducing paper use with double-
sided printing.

To meet the energy-saving and emission reduction
targets of the government, the Group reports
and evaluates energy-saving new technologies
and emission reduction, and develops energy
performance indicators to strictly control energy
consumption, improve and enhance energy
management.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to
submit energy-saving proposals actively, reduces
power consumption, promotes continuous energy
management training, etc. in order to enhance
the knowledge on energy conservation and
environmental protection policies and energy saving
awareness among employees, so that the resources
can be used more efficiently.
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The main environmental impact of the production
business is the use of boiler and electricity in its
manufacturing process. The operation of the boiler
and the use of electricity generate both direct and
indirect GHG emissions. To minimise the impact, the
production and operation sites of the Group have
been evaluated during the initial planning period in
respect of the relevant industrial land environment
and related regulations and the selected production
sites are located in the areas permitted by the local
government. During the production and operation
process, collection and treatment facilities are
installed for proper treatment of pollutants and
emissions in order to ensure meeting the standard
required by local regulations before discharge. The
Group also assesses the feasibility of environmental
protection facilities from time to time, adopts
effective environmental protection measures and
programs, including the prevention and control of
pollution and exhaust gas emission, sustainable
use of resources and ecological and environmental
protection, more active support and promotion of
social and environmental sustainable development.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

1.

Employment and Labour Practices

As a responsible employer, the Group is fully
in compliance with the relevant national laws
and regulations in respect of remuneration,
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversification, anti-discrimination
and other employee benefits and welfare. The
Group also regards employees as its most valuable
asset and strives to provide the competitive salaries,
welfare and working environment for them.
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To the best of the Group’s knowledge, there were
no material non-compliances with relevant laws
and regulations regarding employment, employee’s
health and safety, labour standards, product and
service responsibility or corruption during the
reporting period.

Employment

The Group adheres to fair, impartial and open
employment principles, providing all employees
equal opportunities and fair treatment. The Group
strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “The Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. No arbitrary dismissal of an
employee is allowed; the rights and obligations
of both parties to the employment contract are
clearly stated, the legitimate rights of employees are
protected, in order to establish a harmonious and
stable employment relationship.

Employee Benefits

The Group recruits personnel in line with its
strategic requirements through various channels
like campus interview, social recruitment, network
recruitment in a fair and impartial way. The
Group provides employees with comprehensive
social security benefits, including basic salary,
pensions, incentive bonuses, medical insurance,
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund. The Group will also provide other
employee benefits depending on job nature,
including meals, uniforms and fully equipped
accommodation. The human resources department
of the Group conducts regular reviews and updates
on the relevant company policies from time to
time pursuant to the latest laws and regulations.
Employee performance appraisal, management
position promotion, and other company policies
are implemented to provide career development
path to employees like internal promotions, on
the job training. To attract high-quality talents and
retain outstanding employees, the Group launches
Share Option Scheme and timely conducts reviews
on salary with reference to market standards,
formulates competitive salary and bonus system,
and provides competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on personal performance,
professional qualifications, and experience.
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Diversity and Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining
an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in
which all can thrive.

The Group treats all employees equally. No
employees are discriminated against on the grounds
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, family
status, sexual orientation, nationality, political
opinion, ethnic background or any other non-
working related factors. Each newly-recruited
employee is required to sign a labour contract,
which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities,
and obligations of both the employee and the
employer, and all employees are entitled to
terminate the employment relationship with the
related employment company of the Group. The
entering, amendment, cancellation and termination
of the relevant employment contract are strictly in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Total Employees and Turnover

The Group had a total number of 597 employees
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 741). Below is a
detailed breakdown of our employees by gender,
age group, employment type and geographical
region as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

ZTIERFEHE
AEEBOREENGE—EE
DM ERN TS XL S
BEITHAEARR-

AEEHEI-RRAC A
BETTERAMRN Bk =R
o Filk BRI RKEAR - £
B BORRE REE R
SERMEMIETERBREEM
BERREEAR - B ABET
FERESYPAR PARTEE
TREFETHEN  TEHEE
%5 G B TEB RN EEAR
SEMRBERQFNERER-
MHEREES RIS EF @
R 1B BRI ST R AR K
RME

BEERERTAFE
RZEZEF+_A=+—8"
RNEBEE KERS7REE (=
E-NF:741) RE-FF
M—E-NAFE=ZA=1+—HikKk
Al FERAR - EEER KR
EoMEERMAHINNT :

2020 2019
—E-EE —T-NF

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Recruitment statistics ) E R BETAH Bk BIAH BA
By gender BRI
Male Ei 285 41.7% 379 51.1%
Female it 312 52.3% 362 48.9%
By employment type RERER
Full-time i 594 99.5% 741 100.0%
Part-time EE 3 0.5% - -
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2020 2019
“ECEF “FNF

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Recruitment statistics REsE BEIAY BOk BTAZ Bt
By age group RERMASR
Below 30 305 AT 56 9.4% 88 11.9%
30-50 30-507% 396 66.3% 510 68.8%
Above 50 5055 A £ 145 24.3% 143 19.3%
By geographical region BHE
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) ~ H Bl (BB ) 595 99.7% 739 99.7%
Hong Kong B 2 0.3% 2 0.3%

During the reporting period, our employee turnover
headcount was 164 (2019: 85). Below is a detailed
breakdown of our employee turnover rate by
gender, age group and geographical region during
the year and the corresponding period in 2019:

REMEBHAR - RMEE TR
ABB164%7 (ZF— FLF:85
Z) REER -_ZT—HERH
BRI Fi4E R Kb £ 5’
EEMARERFMPASS DT

2020 2019
Turnover Statistics BEB TS —BZEF —E-NF
Turnover rate by gender RMER & 2 R KR
Male B 28.4% 10.0%
Female M 26.6% 13.0%
Turnover rate by age group REWRA R B D HR KR
Below 30 30BR A T 66.1% 22.7%
30-50 30-50%% 25.5% 9.8%
Above 50 5078 A 17.9% 10.5%
Turnover rate by RihBEDHREAR

geographical region

PRC (excluding Hong Kong) hE (FAERIN) 27.6% 11.5%
Hong Kong B - -
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the health
and safety of employees and has obtained OHSAS
18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System certification, Work Safety
Standardisation certification. The Group has set up
an occupational health and safety management
organisation and a safety production committee
and strictly abides by the relevant standards of
“Occupation Health and Safety Management
System” and “Basic Standard for Work Safety
Standardisation”. The Group also adheres to
the principles of safety production management
and formulates the regulatory system of safety
production management and operation rules for
all positions. The safety and health of employees
are effectively protected by the implementation
of various job safety management systems and
the clarification and definition of safe production
responsibilities of all positions.

£ OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
'~ MANAGEMENT SYSTEM CERTIFICATE
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Occupational Health and Safety

To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment at all times, the Group regularly
provides various kinds of work protective gears to
employees in accordance with working requirements
of each position and supervises and educates them
to wear and utilize correctly; appoints responsible
staff for the safe production of each department
and implements various safety education; installs
dust removal and waste discharging devices on
facilities generating dust and exhaust gas; controls
noise transmission of machinery exceeding the noise
limit or provides protective gears to employees. Fire
safety inspection, training, and drills are regularly
organized to improve safety awareness and self-
protection of employees.

The Group also strictly abides by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”,
“Rule for Storage of Chemical Dangers”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, to
build a safe working environment.

Occupational health and safety data
BERREZ2HE
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Other Health and Safety Measures

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic in
early 2020, the Group is highly conscious of the
potential health and safety impacts that it may
bring to its employees and customers. During
the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group have
established an Epidemic Prevention Working Group
and formulated various safe management measures
against COVID-19 epidemic, displayed notices in
workplace area, provided employees with sufficient
epidemic prevention supplies, and taught employees
the correct personal protection means, so as to
prevent the virus from spreading in the workplace.
Also, regular disinfection was carried out to provide
a virus free working environment to safeguard
employee’s health.

Development and Training

In respect of human resources training, the
Group provides employees with induction and
continuous training to promote their career
development. For newly-recruited employees,
the Group provides comprehensive orientation
training of corporate culture, operation processes,
work health and safety, management policies and
business development. The Group also encourages
employees to participate in on the job training and
provides appropriate subsidies to eligible employees.
Based on job nature, the Group offers trainings
of different types and levels to newly recruited
employees, junior supervisors, senior supervisors
and key personnel, like management and
production project training, aiming at constantly
improving the overall quality of employees, so as to
maintain sustainable business development in the
future.
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For the reporting period, a total of 141 (2019: 200)
of our employees received trainings with an average
of 6.35 (2019: 2.79) training hours. Our training
statistics of employees are as follows:.

RIEHAN £141 (ZFE— AR
F:200)% 8 TS F196.35
ZE—RF2.79) /R
e BEE THEIFT&FN
T

2020 2019
it St 33 —TNF

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Employee received training ¥ &I BEIAE BAk ETAH B
By gender RIER
Male B 64 45.4% 82 41.0%
Female peglis 77 54.6% 118 59.0%
By employment category  Z{ERER
Senior Management SREER - - 2 1.0%
Middle Management hREERE 41 29.1% 18 9.0%
Staff =l 100 70.9% 180 90.0%
Average training hours 2020 2019
per employee BURERETHZIRFH —ECEF —E-NF
By gender &1 Bl
Male EELs 10.3 3.4
Female pegli 3.1 2.3
By employment category RIERER
Senior management SR ERE - 2.0
Middle management RREIRE 4.6 5.9
Staff 81T 7.1 2.5
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B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced
Labour

To prevent illegal employment of child labour,
underage and forced labour, the Group has
established a well-developed mechanism. The
employee manual stipulates that selected candidates
must meet the legal age. Before confirming the
employment, the human resources department of
the Group will require applicants to provide valid
identity documents to ensure that they are legally
employed and fully in compliance with the latest
relevant laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour. The Group also conducts
regular inspection and review of the implementation
of human resources policies to eliminate child
labour and forced labour.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions
of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “The Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, and set reasonable
working hours and leaves for employees pursuant
to local employment ordinances and employment
contracts with employees. The Group has installed a
human resources computerized attendance system
for effective management of staff working hours
and vacation dates. If overtime work is required,
employees may obtain appropriate overtime
payment or compensatory leave under the relevant
employment contract or labour legislation. To
prevent forced overtime work, overtime must be
agreed by employees voluntarily. During office
hours, employees are allowed to move freely within
the factory or office area (except prohibited special
areas), and it is not mandatory for employees to live
in the factory quarters.
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Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to sustainable
and reliable supply chain to ensure sustainable
enterprise development. The Group has formulated
and implemented supplier management system.
Regarding supplier selection, the Group conducts
qualification inspection, factory visit and other
assessment processes on potential suppliers with
the principles of fairness, impartiality, openness
and honesty. Inspection areas include the
production capacity, product quality, service quality,
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety of the supplier.

In order to avoid issues such as varied quality of
products and non-standardisation of materials,
the goods and materials provided by suppliers
are detected by the internal department of the
Group or third-party testing organisations, so as
to select qualified suppliers. Besides, the relevant
departments conduct annual re-evaluation and
assessment on the qualified suppliers for the
supervision of product quality. At the same time,
the Group closely monitors procurement process
to ensure that the procured products meet the
requirements of production technology and product
quality.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of
296 suppliers (2019: 357 suppliers). Among them,
287 suppliers (2019: 345 suppliers) are from the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan),
and the remaining 9 (2019: 12) are from overseas.

The Group does not include environmental and
social factors as assessment criteria of our suppliers.
Nevertheless, we will review and terminate the
business relationship with the suppliers should
there be press and media coverage on the negative
environmental and social impacts caused by them,
such as excessive pollutions and discharges to the
environment, unfair treatment, exploitation of
workers and product safety incidents.
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B6. Product Responsibility

Quality Management

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality and safety, strictly abides by the “Product
Quality Law of the People’'s Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”,
formulates and implements quality policies to
ensure product quality. The Group has obtained
ISO9001 quality management system certification
in 2003. During the process of mass production,
quality control personnel performs sampling
tests on raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods for tracking and identification of
any potentially inferior products and preventing
problematic material misuse in production. All
finished products must be specifically checked
before packaging to ensure they are qualified.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
did not receive any complaints from regulatory
authorities or consumers regarding product safety
and did not recover any products due to product
safety and health reasons. The Group is not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters related to products
sold during the year.
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Data Privacy and Intellectual Property
Protection

The Group maintains close and good business
relationships with product distributors, highly
protects the privacy and business secrets of
distributors and strives to ensure timely response to
the feedback of customers and instant response to
product inquiries. Unless prior approval is obtained,
employees shall not disclose any price-sensitive
information relating to the customers, product
distributors, intangible assets, business secrets of
the Group which may come to their knowledge
during their employment or after termination of
their employment.

The promotion activities of the Group’s products are
carried out by advertising agencies in accordance
with the Group’s policy of privacy, its business
strategy, and the “Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”.
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The Group strictly abides by the “Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “Patent Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and other relevant
laws and regulations relating to intellectual property
protection. Apart from manufacturing customers’
products, the Group has also established its own
brands. The Group has implemented internal
policies to eliminate the risk of infringing customers’
and third parties’ intellectual property in its design,
research, development and manufacturing processes
as well as protecting its own rights. The Group’s
design and development team shall ensure their
designs are not identical and do not bear a close
resemblance to the products of any other customers
or those in the public market. In addition, measures
have been adopted to facilitate the management
and protection of intellectual property, for example,
using password-protected computers to store
products’ information, encrypting files in the
transmission process and prohibiting employees
from taking out product prototypes and samples
without permission.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the core value of integrity and
strictly abides by the provisions of the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “Interim Provisions on Banning of
Commercial Bribery” and other relevant laws and
regulations. The Group has formulated “Baofeng
Personnel Management Regulations” and other
related systems to standardise various business
activities. An internal monitoring system is set up
for strengthening anti-fraud, anti-extortion, anti-
corruption, anti-money laundering and bribery
supervision, while a whistle-blowing mechanism
and a reward and punishment committee are also
set up to strengthen management and promote
compliance, so as to prevent and eliminate fraud,
extortion, bribery and corruptions on various
aspects of operation and management. The
Group prohibits any acts of fraud, extortion,
corruption and bribery, prohibits employees from
taking advantages of their powers and duties
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for corruption, embezzlement, encroachment
of corporate property, acceptance of bribes and
kickbacks, etc. Through various measures like
training and promotion, the Group strengthens
the communication with employees in respect
of internal control and anti-fraud, anti-extortion,
anti-corruption, anti-commercial bribery, so as to
enhance their awareness in this regard.

The Group has formulated supplier relationship
guidelines and government authority relationship
guidelines. Standard professional code of ethics and
conduct is formulated for the communication with
business partners, suppliers, customers, etc. and
employees are required to follow strictly.

When there is any alleged case in violation of laws,
regulations or Group’s policies, the Group will
investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon
offenders after verification.

During the year, the Group did not notice any non-
compliance of the applicable laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption and did not face any
disciplinary action with respect to corruption issues.

Community
Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public
welfare activities. No formal policy on community
investment has been established. Nevertheless, the
Group contributed to the charity and public welfare
undertakings through organising blood donation,
and continuously encourages its employees to
participate in charitable events during the year.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, aged 51, has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group since 26 February 2021. Before the re-designation, he
had been appointed as the executive Director, Vice-Chairman
of the Board and the authorised representative under the
Listing Rules with effect from 3 February 2015. Mr. Leung
holds a degree of bachelor of arts in Business Studies from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a degree of master
in Business Administration from the University of New South
Wales. He has 30 years of extensive experience in business
administration in domestic and overseas markets. Mr. Leung
joined 2D Material Technology Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the chief executive
officer in November 2014.

Mr. Zheng Jingdong

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 55, is an executive Director of the
Company. Before the re-designation on 26 February 2021, Mr.
Zheng had been appointed as a Director since 21 July 2008,
and had been appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an executive Director and
the authorised representative under the Listing Rules since 10
May 2013. Mr. Zheng has more than 20 years of experience
in the slipper business in the PRC. He has been appointed as a
director of Quanzhou Baofeng since 28 March 2007 and as a
director of BAOF International Limited since 21 July 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Dr. Xu Zhi

Dr. Xu Zhi, aged 54, has been appointed as the executive
Director of the Board and Chief Technology Officer of the
Group with effect from 26 February 2021. He is an expert in
the areas of semiconductor equipment and processing, and
solar technology. Dr. Xu obtained a Doctor of Philosophy in
Materials Science and Engineering from The Leland Stanford
Junior University in June 1998. Prior to joining the Group,
Dr. Xu had worked in Applied Materials, Inc. for more than
a decade with his last positions as senior manager and
senior member of technical staff and participated in the
research and development of plasma-enhanced chemical
vapor deposition and low pressure chemical vapor deposition
system. He subsequently worked for the position of senior
manager and senior member of technical staff at the branch
office of Applied Materials, Inc. in China. He then became
a distinguished professor and doctoral tutor in Hunan
University and was elected as a State Specially Recruited
Expert and engaged in the relevant research on graphene
and nanomaterial and developed a series of graphene related
products. Dr. Xu joined the Group as a technical consultant in
December 2015 and has been the technical director of Xinfeng
2D (Fujian) Material Technology Company Limited (4@ #1&
ZHEMBIEBR QA , an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, since September 2017. He is responsible for
leading the research and development team of the Group in
the research and development of material technology and
applications.
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Biographical Details of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Lin Weihuan

Ms. Lin Weihuan, aged 39, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 7 January 2016. Ms. Lin obtained a
bachelor of business degree in financial management from
La Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia in 2005. She
later obtained a master of business degree in professional
accounting from Victoria University in Melbourne, Australia in
2006. Ms. Lin has over ten years of experience in accounting.
She is now the sole director and sole shareholder of Total
Shine Investments Limited (“Total Shine”) which is principally
engaged in investment business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. An Na

Ms. An Na, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been an executive
editor of B & T % H kx4t (China Light Industry Press) since
1982 She has also been a vice president of 1t UREE)
M54t (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003 at which
she has been responsible for managing and coordinating the
publication of several fashion magazines. In August 2015,
she resigned her post in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She
received an editor’s qualification from B EEE EEEE
& 8@ (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2002. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from PEILE T
¥ BB (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
PR RS A E: (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr. Chen Shaohua

Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 54, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Open University of China (B1%X
FA AR ) (previously known as China Central Radio and TV
University (FREFEER KE)), and obtained a bachelor's
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (3t 5 T A£2) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit
and tax matters. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and legal representative of auditing firm, tax
company, asset and property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor Zhao Jinbao

Professor Zhao Jinbao, aged 57, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 3 February
2015. Professor Zhao graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology (% & T ¥ K2) of the PRC and obtained a
bachelor of engineering degree in Electrochemistry in 1984
and a master’s degree in High Polymer Materials Engineering
in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained a doctor’s degree
in Engineering from Kyoto University in Japan in 1996. He
has been a professor of Physical Chemistry in the Xiamen
University (B F3XE) of the PRC since 2011. He has over 20
years of extensive experience in research and development
in the field of engineering and chemistry and was recruited
as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program of Global
Experts (8 5MN& B IR AT 51T E).
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 and a discussion on the Group's future
business development and its principal risks and uncertainties
are provided in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 4 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group always pays attention to environmental protection.
Details of the environmental policies and performance of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees and is periodically reviewed with reference to
industry practice. Discretionary bonuses and share options
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. During the year under review, the
Group considered the relationship with employees was good
and the turnover rate is acceptable.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group has been working
continuously with its suppliers to improve the standard of
raw materials and aiming at delivering products with high
quality to its customers. All key customers and suppliers have
a close and long term relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 88 to 212.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 90.1% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 66.9%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 44.0% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
16.9% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

e  Executive Directors:

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (re-designated from
Vice-chairman to Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 26 February 2021)

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

Dr. Xu Zhi (appointed as Chief Technology Officer on
26 February 2021)

e Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

* Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, Dr. Xu Zhi, who was
appointed by the Board as an additional Director in February
2021, shall hold office until the AGM, being the first AGM
after his appointment, and shall retire and subject to re-
election from office at the AGM. Being eligible, he will offer
himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and
(2), Mr. Zheng Jingdong and Ms. An Na shall retire from office
by rotation at the AGM. Being eligible, Mr. Zheng Jingdong
and Ms. An Na will offer themselves for re-election as an
executive Director and an independent non-executive Director,
respectively, at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
59 to 62 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three-month notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed on note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors had entered, or was proposing to
enter, into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, the Directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from or against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved for transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors was
materially interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
contract or arrangement during the year which is significant in
relation to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates
had any material interest in business which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares:

Name of Director

BExps SOREENE

Capacity and nature of interest

EERFETHRAERRD - HHEH
RO REEEPNESZR AR

RZEBE-ZEF+_A=Z+—H ESER
RAEETBAEBRARR R EEB EE
(EERBHRBEGD ([FHFRBEK
Bl]) EBXVES) B9 B% 10 - #8 B8 A% 10 K (& 4 3F
PR )VREES RS G EXVIET R
F8DEAME AR F) MR PRI 5 Mok
B (BREREFEAFRBERM A BIEE
EESREBEANESZ AR ¢ ()RIEE
% N B E GBI 35216 H 58 A % G Pl i
ARARFEMELMAOERS AR i)
R4E R BT8R 10FT S A IZE ST B89 48
TEAMEARRNR KRB ATHOER AR I
T

R K AHE R 60 ey

Number of Percentage of

Beneficial owner

BEdBEAA

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung
RS MEE

Ms. LIN Weihuan (“Ms. Lin")@

MWEELZL (Mt ])@ P2 1)K B 9 #E 2

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Interest in controlled corporation

Shares/underlying  the Company’s
Shares (other than issued share
share options) held capital®
R HER
7 (BREIN) (EERAREHT
®A RAB DD
6,000,000(L) 0.40%
233,155,792(L) 15.68%

RAEQRBBREPHNER:
Percentage of
the Company'’s

Number of share issued share

Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest options held® capital®
HEATESRITR

EEps BORERME FEEREZE® AEDHM

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong Beneficial owner 500,000(L) 0.03%

BRREAE BB A

Dr. Xu Zhi (appointed on Beneficial owner 35,600,000(L) 2.39%

26 February 2021)
FEBL(RZE=—%F EnlEa A
“AZ+RBEZMFT)
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Notes:

(1) The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 1,486,859,608
shares).

(2) Ms. Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Total
Shine is interested.

(3) These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each of them under the Share Option
Scheme. Accordingly, each of them was regarded as interested
in the underlying Shares.

(4) The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of share options of the Company are included in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below and also shown in note
31 to the financial statements.
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) HREEHIEARTotal Shinefis (A
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) LABRAAREEREFIRTEE
2= B0 B ARME JE 1T (68 1 %5 () L A B Ko 7T
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hEA R

@ FEILIRTRIO R AAEEE KDL
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EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8 January
2011. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020:

BREsTE

ARRARIR-ZTE——F— N\ BEMERE
Bl BARERT RN FBENERE B R
RWFE3T »

TREBENR T -_TF+_A=1+—HE
Pt At 81T T &Y i R 1T (0 B A e

Number of share options
BRELA
Qutstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised ~ Cancelled ~ Forfeited asatd Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise per share
grant”/ January 2020 year year year year 2000 period ? (HKS)  Notes
H-%-%k g k43
-A-8 i ERiT&E
Name or Category of particpants ~ SEANE2HEH REAS HATE ERRE  ERAE  EREE  EARY WATE  AEL (Bm) W&
xecutive Directors yires
Leung sz Chung 2¥p 101202015 4,000,000 - - - (4,000,000) - B 081
ZHENG JINGDONG S 10122015 1,500,000 - - - {1,500,000) - A 081
1011202015 2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) - B 081
1011272015 2,500,000 - - - (2,500,000) - ( 081
101212015 2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) - D 081
101202015 2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000 - : 081
19/6/2018 300,000 - - - - 300,000 P 0.54
19/6/2018 200,000 - - - - 200,000 0 0.54
Subotel Dt 14500,000 - - - (140000000 500000
Employees s
101212015 9.417,000 - - - (9,417,000) - A 081
101212015 13,356,000 - - - (13,356,000) - B 081 3
101122015 695,000 - - - (695,000) - ( 081
1011202015 55,000 - - - (556,000) - D 081
10/12/2015 55,000 - - - (556,000) - t 081
24061201 26,040,000 - - - - 26,040,000 f 0.67
24/6/2016 17,440,000 - - - - 17,440,000 6 0.67
20612016 200,000 - - - - 200,000 H 0.67
240612016 160,000 - - - - 160,000 I 0.67
240612016 160,000 - - - - 160,000 J 0.67
16/12/2016 75,000 - - - - 75,000 K 09 3
16/122016 100,000 - - - - 100,000 L 09 3
16/1212016 125,000 - - - - 125,000 M 09 3
16/1212016 100,000 - - - - 100,000 N 09 X
16122016 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0 099 3
19/612018 40,680,000 - - - - 40,680,000 P 0.54
19/6/2018 27,120,000 - - - - 27,120,000 0 0.54
2102000 - 50,400,000 - - - S04000 R 05
2100000 - 33,600,000 - - - BELW S 035
Sub-total N 136,880,000 84,000,000 - - (24,580,000) 195,300,000
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Number of share options
BREgA
Qutstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Forfeited asat3l Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise per share
grant”” January 2020 year year year year 020 period? (HKS) ~ Notes
igu Juk: 53 igu Juk: 43
-A-H TZAZt-H Shi%R
Name or Category of particpants ~ SEAN#E 28N REAS MATE ERARE  EATE  EREE  FARN HAOE  TEE0 (Bz) Wi
Consultants Bh
240612016 19,620,000 - - - - 19,620,000 F 067 3
24062016 14,160,000 - - - - 14,160,000 6 067 3
24062016 2,700,000 - - - - 2,700,000 H 067 3
24/6/2016 2,160,000 - - - - 2,160,000 | 067 3
2062016 2,160,000 - - - - 2,160,000 J 067 3
16122016 1,350,000 - - - - 1,350,000 K 099
16122016 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 L 0.99
16112/2016 2,250,000 - - - - 2,250,000 M 0.99
16/12/2016 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 N 0.99
16/12/2016 1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000 0 0.99
19/612018 24,000,000 - - - - 24,000,000 P 0.54
19/6/2018 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 Q 054
221102020 - 16,200,000 - - - 16,200,000 R 0.55
211012020 - 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000 § 0.55
Sub-total N 89,800,000 27,000,000 - - - 116,800,000
Total h 241,180,000 111,000,000 - - (38,580,000) 313,600,000

BERYE —ToRFFH




Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Notes: Bt &t

1. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date 1. & E’\E%?Fi?‘iﬁ Bf-F-—a%+= ﬂ
of grant on 10 December 2015, 24 June 2016, 16 December +R-=F /\E/\ﬂ JrP_T] A -
2016, 19 June 2018 and 22 October 2020 were HK$0.79, —NEF-A+AR T /\ixxﬁ]
HK$0.69, HK$0.99, HK$0.50 and HK$0.50 respectively. THAAR-ZE_FE+A -+ —HAH

WE D B A0.797% 7T~ 0.6978 7T ~ 0.99
770+ 0.507% 7T }0.5058 7T ©

2. The respective exercise periods of the share options granted 2. FrixHERiEs gTE e T
are as follows:

A: From 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020; A: 2R+ -A+HE=ZZ
TEF+ZANE:

B: From 10 December 2016 to 9 December 2020; B: —E-RETATHEZ-ZC
ZF+-ANAB:

C: From 10 December 2017 to 9 December 2020; C: —FE—t+tF+ZA+HEZZ=
TE+—ANB:

D: From 10 December 2018 to 9 December 2020; D: - \F+=-A+HZE
TEF+—ANE:

E: From 10 December 2019 to 9 December 2020; E: —NF+—At+tHE=ZE=
$¢+ BNH:

F: From 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021; F: TE-RNERNAZTHHEHEC=S
——®FXA=+=8:

G: From 24 June 2017 to 23 June 2021; G: ZE—tEFRAZTEHEEZZE
——F®XA=-+=H:

H: From 24 June 2018 to 23 June 2021; H: —E-)\FRAZTHHE=Z
——FRXA-t+=8:

From 24 June 2019 to 23 June 2021; ZE-NFRAZTHBREC=Z

Z—FRXAZ+=8:

J: From 24 June 2020 to 23 June 2021; I CECRERATHBAEC=Z
——®FRXA=+=8:

K: From 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021; K : ZE-RET AT ARHEZS
——F+=ZA+EHH:

L: From 16 December 2017 to 15 December 2021; L: ZE—tFF+ZRA+RBEZE
——F+ZA+HA

M: From 16 December 2018 to 15 December 2021; M: ZEFE—AFF+_A+BHE=Z
——F+=-A+HAB:

N: From 16 December 2019 to 15 December 2021; N : —NF+ZA+AEZZ
_—¢+_H +HAB:

0: From 16 December 2020 to 15 December 2021; O: —E-EF+_A+REE=ZE
——F+=A+HH:

P: From 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023; P: ZE-NFRAA+TNABE=ZZE
—=FA+NH:

Q: From 19 June 2019 to 18 June 2023; Q: =ZE—hAFANAt+tLBEZ=Z
—=FXA+NE:
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R:

S:

From 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025; and

From 22 October 2021 to 21 October 2025.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

a.

6,800,000 share options were granted to two persons
who were employees of the Group and have become
consultants of the Group subsequently.

30,000 share options were granted to a person who
was an employee of the Group and has become a
consultant of the Group subsequently.

40,000 share options were granted to a person who
was an employee of the Group and has become a
consultant of the Group subsequently.

50,000 share options were granted to a person who
was an employee of the Group and has become a
consultant of the Group subsequently.

1,620,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

2,160,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

2,700,000 share options were granted to a person who
was a consultant of the Group and has become an
employee of the Group subsequently.

Exercise condition: Provided always that a grantee of share
options shall remain as a Director, an employee or a consultant
of the Group, at the time of exercise of his or her share
options.

The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.
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R: ZZFZFF+AZ+ZRE=FT
—HEFE+AZ+—H: &
S: —E—F+AZ+ZHEZZT
—HFE+AZ=+—H-
ZEERENEBHABR L HERE
EITE ARG IE -
3. a. 6,800,000 EREEE TM A

EAAREERE 2 AL RER
KRAAEEZER -

30,0000 IEIREE R T —RE A
NEBREEBZ AT RBERKA
RNEB 2B -

40,0000 B EDH T — R E B
FEBREEZ AT REEEKE
AEBZER-

50,000 BEECE T —RE S
FEBREEZ AT REEEKE
AEBZER-

1,620,000 lERREE B T — 4
wAKREFBBAMZ AT RFEHE
RALAEEZEE -

2,160,0007 R EEE T — 4
wAREFBBAMZ AT RFEHE
RAXAEEZEE -

2,700,0007 R EE B T — 4
wAREFBBAMZ AT RFEHEE
RAAEBZES

TTEE IR - BRI AR ARITEREBR

BEDARAEENES BEHER -

BRENEE R/ RITEERSEMRR

SR S 17 SR 2 IR R L
ESEEE
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons
or corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares:

Capacity and nature of

EEREROIEEENZH

BREXTEEREZITHRABRBRMD
MR LEEETOERR SRR R
(BT S FMAImEEIN RFER
TAEH TERTENEFARES
BEHEBIANFEFLEBRBEART
By EEREMESH s 2 BN KF
I ETETAEEEN: BARA]
HER AR s EEMAMHE LR MR R
MEARMET YSEZTARBEMN
Hi A NBE R EREERN 2 k-

FERRREMALIRERMORMAE
EROPHERKRKXR

RZZE-_ZFF+-_A=+—H BEEXK
ARABEBTHRAEBMM AT ALSHOR
(BFLARAERITHRABRIN R
MEBER DT EER BRI EFER
RiERE 7 MHIE R EXVERSE2 M35 B 1
RZAR AR AR E M BN RIEE 7 M
HERGIFEIBCHRATHFENELM KA
RITAERRAIZ e LORBW T

REORAEBROFHNESZR KA

Percentage of the

Number of Shares/ Company’s issued

Name interests underlying Shares"? share capital®
2 HART S BT

ey BORRERME HERGZBE M &Nl AL

Mr. Sze Ching Bor (“Mr. Sze") @ Interest in controlled 285,879,975 (L) 19.23%

corporation

EIBRAEAE ([LEE]O P i )% B My i

Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping @ Spousal Interest 285,879,975 (L) 19.23%

BT L L0 i 18 4 2

Best Mark International Limited Beneficial owner 240,720,365 (L) 16.19%

(“Best Mark”) @ BEHBEA A
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Percentage of the

Capacity and nature of Number of Shares/ Company’s issued
Name interests underlying Shares share capital®®
g HART ST
£ SORERME HEERAE B [Nl A
Total Shine @ Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 15.68%
EmEAA
Ms. Lin @ Interest in controlled 233,155,792 (L) 15.68%
corporation
Mm@ Fr ¥ &l 5 B Ay f 2
Bluestone ® Beneficial owner 220,000,000 (L) 14.80%
ERe Enla A
Mr. Zhuang Chaohui ® Interest in controlled 220,000,000 (L) 14.80%
corporation
HEARE LG FryE 5B R e
Mr. Chiu © Beneficial owner 102,000,000 (L) 6.86%
RS HE® EnlE A
Venus Capital Fund @ Beneficial owner 100,800,000 (L) 6.78%
E=EAA
Venus Capital Management Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 6.78%
Company Limited © corporation

PAT4%E I A [ B #E 25

Ms. Zhang © Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 6.78%
corporation
REZL L Friz & A B R i e

BigRE —Z-RFFHR
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Notes:

Mr. Sze is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Best Mark and Capital Vision International Limited ("Capital
Vision"). Best Mark and Capital Vision are wholly owned
and controlled by Mr. Sze and are interested in 240,720,365
Shares and 45,159,610 Shares respectively, representing
approximately 16.19% and 3.04%, respectively of the issued
Shares.

Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping, the spouse of Mr. Sze, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Sze's interests in the Company.

Best Mark is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Sze.

Total Shine is interested in 233,155,792 Shares. Ms. Lin,
who wholly owns and controls Total Shine, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Total Shine is interested.

Bluestone is interested in 220,000,000 Shares. Mr. Zhuang
Chaohui, who wholly owns and controls Bluestone, is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Bluestone is interested.

Mr. Chiu has obtained share options granted by the Company
entitling him to subscribe for 20,000,000 Shares. Mr. Chiu is
also interested in 82,000,000 Shares.

Venus Capital Fund is interested in 100,800,000 Shares.

Venus Capital Management Company Limited wholly owns
Venus Capital Fund and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Venus Capital Fund is interested.

Ms. Zhang, who wholly owns and controls Venus Capital
Management Company Limited, is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Venus Capital Management Company
Limited is interested.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 1,486,859,608
shares).

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares
or underlying Shares.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

EE

(10)

(11

5 A R A Best Mark & Capital
Vision International Limited ([ Capital
Vision | ) BT #5 B {0 &1 % B # % © Best
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company was
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) or corporation which had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme to motivate
and reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as the Company’s auditor is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Leung Tsz Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2021

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

2

RAEBERSAMERAARAAGERIER
BREBFREG FREARBZEA &+

RIR2RBRNAGEHEE -

KREFS

S
R T

BB
—E-—4F=ZHA=+H



Independent Auditor’s Report

B %A RS

AR
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n:{:ﬂnfucluﬁ International CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF BAOFENG MODERN
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 88 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

Material uncertainty in relation to going concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB108,756,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB132,103,000 and total liabilities exceeds its total assets
by approximately RMB44,889,000. These conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
As explained in “Going Concern” section of note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group carried out
certain alternatives to improve financial position. As a result,
our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

At 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of the
Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB44,454,000, net of allowance for credit losses of
approximately RMB1,179,000, which was material to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The allowance
was assessed based on the expected credit loss model. The
assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables
involved significant management judgement and estimation
including their assessment of customers’ current financial
position and forward-looking information.

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of the trade receivables.

Details of the trade receivables are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

o obtaining an understanding of the Group's procedures
on setting of credit limits and credit periods given to
customers with the management;

o evaluating the design and implementation of controls
over the accounting process of allowance for credit
losses and evaluated management’s assumptions and
judgement by comparing to the historical collection
trends;

o checking the accuracy of preparation of the aging
analysis of trade receivables by customers by tracing the
data back to the source documents;

o checking on a sampling basis, the debtors’ historical
payment pattern and the bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to the reporting period;

o checking on a sampling basis, the evidence including
correspondence with the debtors for the latest progress
of the outstanding amounts; and

e assessing the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data inputs on a
sampling basis and reviewing the key assumptions used
to determine the expected credit losses, including both
historical and forward-looking information.

We found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the recoverability of trade
receivables were supportable by credible evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

As set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2020, the Group had intangible assets
amounting to approximately RMB154,000 comprising (i)
technology know-how of approximately RMBO; (ii) 020
distribution vending system of approximately RMBO and (iii)
capitalisation of deferred development costs and patents in
relation to the research and development of manufacturing
and application technology of graphene material on
sterilizing chips, energy storage materials for batteries and
pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes of approximately
RMB154,000. During the year, impairment loss on intangible
assets of approximately RMB64,842,000 was recognised in
profit or loss.

Management is required to carry out an impairment
assessment on these intangible assets at least annually.
Independent external valuations were obtained in order to
support management estimates. These assessments of the
recoverable amounts involved significant management’s
assessment and judgement on the key assumptions used in
cash flow projections and profit forecasts based on financial
budgets approved by management, which is judgemental and
based on a number of assumptions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
intangible assets included:

o evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o assessing the valuation methodologies adopted by
management which are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements;

o evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions
used in the valuations based on our knowledge of the
business and industry including profit forecasts, cash flow
projections, discount rates, budgeted sales and gross
margin through assessing the cash generating unit’s
past performance, management’s expectation of the
market development and future 5 years’ financial budget
approved by the management;

o evaluating the potential impact of value-in-use based on
the reasonably possible change of the key assumptions;

o discussing with the management and the independent
valuers engaged by the management to understand
the assumptions they used in building up the cash flow
projections;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(continued)

o challenging the assumptions used in business plans and
development plans adopted by the Group in relation to
the technology know-how and 020 distribution vending
system;

o reviewing the detailed analysis prepared by the
management for the deferred development costs
and testing the reconciliation of amounts reported to
accounting records; and

e discussing with the management about the nature
of work being completed for each product and their
assessment of the areas of judgement for each product,
in particular, the stage of technical development and
economic feasibility.

Based on our procedures described, we found the impairment
assessment on intangible assets to be reasonable.

Valuation of investment properties

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2020, the Group had investment properties
held by a subsidiary of approximately RMB$60,029,000 and for
which a gain arising on change in fair value of approximately
RMB$14,073,000 was recognised and presented as “Fair value
gain on investment properties” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The fair
value was determined by management with reference to the
valuations performed by independent professional property
valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by the Group.

The valuation of investment properties was considered as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgements involved in determining the inputs
used in the valuation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

o evaluating the competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity of the Valuers;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

o obtaining and reviewing the valuation report prepared by
the Valuers;

e  discussing the valuations with management and the
Valuers and challenging key estimates adopted and
inputs used in the valuations, including those relating
to market selling prices, market rents and capitalisation
rates, by comparing them with historical rates and market
observable data;

o evaluating the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and parameters
based on our knowledge of other property valuations for
similar types of properties; and

e checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used in the valuations on a sample basis.

We found the key assumptions used in management's
valuation of investment properties were supported by the
available evidence.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, but does not
included the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BE RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary
Practising Certificate Number: PO1316

Hong Kong
30 March 2021

B %A RS

BB B GREMBRRARENE

E(#&)

e It EREAERIEKEINUH
BRER R MEENEFRRE A
BHEAVHREERER -KMEAE
A BEEEFEFWNIA EERH
T-BARBAERAEEHEE:

BPREZZEER(EPEE)RHE
B ERETHEMEAETRRETER Z
FERVBREBMEREREF H R R
BRI E KB ©

BAMREZZ S SELER  EHRME
FAEERBIMNEREEER YHEKSE
BREEAERASHERMBILIMEN
FrEBEEEMEET  UNIEE EEE
(ans@Em )~

ftEBRZZEQBBENFED RABEY
AHEEAMBERREAZHEEZNS
B FAmEKERRERR FE - RAIEREED
WEPHAZEFSEER  BRIDEARIER T
MARBRBEZFER EERFEER
T WEEEMERMNBEPBBRXER
ERH B EERBBEEN AR M - AR
PORETERERETBBEZER

X REREHHERFERL
HEBEHAT

IR

HEZEZYENE  PO1316

)
T —F=HA=*1H

BERYE —ToRFFH




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeEaREMEERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—-FT_FF+-A=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ibEES AR®BT R ARETT

REVENUE Wy 28 6 111,869 169,687
Cost of sales HERMA (93,866) (139,568)
GROSS PROFIT E7 18,003 30,119
Other net income and gains H A R 5E 6 13,651 2,934

(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment (&R REL 7 EKE
loss on trade receivables from sales of SRR CRERE),

goods AR R T (527) 521
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERX (7,922) (11,101)
General and administrative expenses —MRATH X (59,744) (44,547)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 18 (12,280) (52,720)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERERE 18 (64,842) (234,295)
Impairment loss on assets held for sale BEFEEEREREIE 23 - (3,000)
Finance costs BLE KA 7 (5,912) (6,072)
Fair value gain on investment properties &Y% 7 AT EWES 16 14,073 -
Fair value gain on provision for AV EFAERLZ

contingent consideration at fair value HAREBEEZ AT

through profit or loss (ERNE 28 - 4,769
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBE AT A 1R 8 (105,500) (313,392)
Income tax expense PTG TR X 11 (3.256) (1,044)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL RRFFEEAEN

COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR FABBERFA

THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO TEHAXAE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12 (108,756) (314,436)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 14
— Basic (RMB) —ER(ARE) (0.07) (0.22)
- Diluted (RMB) —#HFE(ARE) (0.07) (0.22)

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the I BB EN GRS VB SRERME13 -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020

mE BRI R

R-ZE-FFf-_H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEHE —ZE-NEF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
iz ARET R AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN G 15 28,125 49,291
Investment properties REME 16 60,029 -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 4,533 27,351
Intangible assets B EE 18 154 77,255
92,841 153,897
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 7 19 39,127 29,367
Trade receivables FEUE Z IR 20 44,454 44,784
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE e R EA R IE
receivables 21 14,813 38,394
Pledged deposits EERER 22 3,780 3,855
Cash and bank balances Be RiR1THE 22 625 4,101
102,799 120,501
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables ENE SRS RENER 24 65,705 56,856
Deposits received, other payables BEilize A FIER
and accruals EztER 25 38,926 51,553
Short term borrowings REEE 26 130,140 114,200
Lease liabilities HEBRE 27 131 604
Income tax payable e PG TR - 100
234,902 223,313
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (132,103) (102,812)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAE
LIABILITIES (39,262) 51,085
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRI KR

As at 31 December 2020 R -ZE-ZFF+_-H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECER “E-NnF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
HiaF ARETR AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥REBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 211 550
Deferred tax liability RERIESE 29 5,416 2,557
5,627 3,107
(NET LIABILITIES)/NET ASSETS (BEFE) EEFE (44,889) 47,978
EQUITY B
Share capital A% 7R 30 99,310 99,310
Reserves & (144,199) (51,332)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/TOTAL (BEREH), EREE
EQUITY (44,889) 47,978

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 212  F88E2NHMGAMKERERLESETERN

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Z—ZTZ=—%F=A=+HH#EREERZE I
directors on 30 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by: BRATATREREE
LEUNG Tsz Chung ZHENG Jingdong
RFH RN
Director Director
FF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEaRg X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

Statutory  Exchange  Capital Share
Share Share Contributed  surplus fluctuation redemption ~ options Accumulated Total Total
capital ~ premium  surplus fund  reserve  reserve  reserve losses ~~ reserves equity
tEBR  ERRD RRE BB
Rx  RHEE E8BR  0Re i B B EFE  HRHE  RR4E
Notes— RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
B ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARRTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(note 30) (note 32()  (note 320i)  (note 32/ii))
(Hit30) (W) (wasam) (Kasan)
1 January 2019 “E-n5-R-H 8,758 563815 141376 95478 155 54 41800 (615964 227184 313942
Loss and total comprehensive expenses  EREER2ERR
for the year ] - - - - - - - (B14se) (4430 (314436)
Fouitysetted share-based payments — RRIEE )
RREmOAR ¥ - - - - - - 5% SR 59
Completion of subscrption of new shares 5 & H R 0 125 306 - - - - - - e BIB
At 31 December 2019 and W-E-nf
1 January 200 tZAZ1-ER
ZECEE-R-A 9310 594436 141376 95478 155 54 4709 - (930400)  (5133) 47978
Loss and total comprehensive expenses  ERMEER2ERR
for the year g - - - - - - - (108,756)  (108,756)  (108,750)
Fouitysetled share-based payments ~ RRERE
RhaERafR 3 - - - - - - 1588 - 19 15809
Forfeiture of share options RhERE 3 - - - - - - BBy 1319 - -
At 31 December 2020 H-%-%%
+tZR=t-H 99310 594436 141,376 95,478 155 54 49749 (1,005917)  (144199)  (44,889)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EC-EF —T-hF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Kt aF AR®B TR AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESTE
Loss before tax BRAX AT EE (105,500) (313,392)
Adjustments for: NGB IATE
Interest income FlEWA 6 (43) (85)
Interest expenses B 7 5,912 6,072
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB N ERETE
equipment 15 6,217 6,131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 17 750 1,315
Gain on termination of lease mIERE S (24) -
Amortisation of intangible assets T A A 5 18 12,280 52,720
Loss on disposals of items of HEME - BE K&
property, plant and equipment REEEEB 614 139
Impairment loss on intangible B EERERE
assets 18 64,842 234,295
Impairment loss on assets held for HEGEEERERE
sale - 3,000
Impairment loss/(reversal of HERMELEZERES
impairment loss) on trade RRUREEE,ORE
receivables from sales of goods EsiE%EmE) 527 (521)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down FEMUR B L), WO
of inventories (896) 166
Equity-settled share-based RRREEE ARG,
payments RERHR 15,889 5,299
Fair value gain on investment REME 2 AP EKE
properties 16 (14,073) -
Fair value gain on provision for BRATFERABRZEA
contingent consideration at fair REBHE 2 A FERS
value through profit or loss 28 - (4,769)
Operating cash flow before changes LBECHFHR 2 LE
in working capital BeER= (13,505) (9,630)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEm), E (8,864) 11,023
Increase in trade receivables FEWE 5 BRBIE hN (197) (10,604)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTFRIE - R R E MK
deposits and other receivables FIER A (1) 24,206 (51)
Increase in trade and bills payables BB SR L ENZE
0 8,849 10,050
Decrease in deposits received, other B ilire - E bR FRIE K&
payables and accruals JEETE R (12,627) (8,083)
Cash used in operations REFARE (2,138) (7,295)
Interest received EHFILE 43 85
Enterprise income taxes paid BRI ETEH (497) (1,078)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt it AR®T T AR®EF T
Net cash flows used in operating RETHMARSRETFHE
activities (2,592) (8,288)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME WENMRHEEE
and equipment 15 (9,820) (4,203)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE WEREBEE
property, plant and equipment HEtiEe (625) (8,638)
Purchases and addition of intangible EN=NE RS
assets 18 21) (24)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEWZE HEMEEER
property, plant and equipment FriS 538 81 57
Withdrawal of/(placement in) pledged RE (i) © B WiEa
deposits 75 (3,855)
Net cash flows used in investing REZBFFARERETH
activities (10,310) (16,663)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from the issue of new shares EEITHTI PS50 - 23,458
Drawdown of new short term R REAEE
borrowings 26 148,140 114,200
Repayments of short term borrowings BEEHEE 26 (132,200) (123,100)
Repayments of lease liabilities BREERE (602) (514)
Interest paid B F A (5,912) (6,072)
Net cash flows generated from RMETHBRSREFH
financing activities 9,426 7,972
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HRE&RBESZEBYRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (3.476) (16,979)
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERBRESEFED
beginning of year 4,101 21,080
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRREEEY
END OF YEAR 625 4,101
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBREEBYERDIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RiRITH 625 4,101
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 January 2011 (the
“Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) during the year.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark”), which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Sze Ching Bor.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

The Group has applied the following revised IFRSs which
include IFRSs and International Accounting Standards
("1ASs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Definition of Material
[AS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

In addition, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRSs.

The application of the above amendments to IFRSs in
the current year does not have any material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

F&E FIRTR] B ARAE 5T B R B 3 3R
%Jj"i’;ﬁ'] ([ EHPR A B 3R 5 %
]

AEBECRAFEEREAOBEERES
AAEAEES((ERetERES
g ) RMA TN EETRR I RE
Q| B ¥ B B 755 i o ZE Bl B B R
SETERI([BER SR ER )

B gt ERIZ 1R FEANESR
K FE8H (BFIA)

ERMEREEN  EBNEE
F35 (BRIA)

BB B R S R AE  MEREERE
9% - BIFR &5t 2RI
%395 & BB I 7%
WEERETH (&

HEN),
BIFR @ 5 mE 2R Covid-1948R8
F16%% (BRI AK) HERR

(FRATERA)

BESN - AER B B 5RO BB B A RS
AR B RAE R ey 2t (15T AN ) -

IR [ A A £ B R T BIRR B 75 it
EREAH AR EBARFEE LA FEH
FBRARMRN R, SR E P BR
R BRBENAR L EEATE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERFE] REIET BRI R
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL EXER ([ BEIPRE ISR &%
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B &)

("IFRSs") (continued)
New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not BB RERPEFET RZERT
yet effective ] R Bt 75 3 25 22 Al
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBEWEIREEAUTCEMBER
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not REMAFE] RAIEE] BRI B 1S iRk
yet effective: AER]
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and BB B 75 S B REBADRABES
related Amendments? 175
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BB B 75 S B REEHEBENT
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its 105 L AR e: SeehE MR
Associate or Joint Venture* ERE285E (B R)  BEHEITIAL
Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark BB B TS SR 22 B FIREEYE-F=
IAS 39 and IFRS 7, Reform-phase 2' Fo5 B e il RR
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 F39%: - B AT

ERAETR - ERH
BREER R4

BRI o 22
F165: (BTA)
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual B PR E 5 R | A HEZE Ry 1R 2
Framework? F3H(BIIX)
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment BRerERE165  WE -BEK
— Proceeds before Intended (B3TAR) RE— BT RRA
Use? H RS 0R?
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BB e ERE37H BEAN-EITAY
Fulfilling a Contract? (BFIAK) b
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BERe:tERE1% BEEIEALRD
Current or Non-current? (BFIA) IEmE?
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to BBR B TR o 2 R BB A R 228 =
IFRSs 2018-2020? ({BETA) E-N\FE-ZTC
TEFE I
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! R-ZE-—F—H—H=l 2%
January 2021, earlier application permitted. ZEEHBEER SFTRAIER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R-ZE-—F—F—H= 2%
January 2022, earlier application permitted. ZEEHBEER SFTRAIER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 RZE-_=F—A—Hs% %A
January 2023, earlier application permitted. ZEEHBEER SFTRAIER -
4 Effective date to be determined. 4 FETEKREE-
The directors of the Company consider the application of RARESTRREAZEN REKE
the new and amendments to IFRSs would not have any RIBR I BmEEAN ST EEE Y
material impact on the consolidated financial statements. BHRENERTE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all the applicable individual
IFRSs which includes all applicable individual IFRSs, IASs
and Interpretations issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and provision for contingent
consideration which are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policy set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the market at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are accounted with IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

3.

%Aﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘%

FES_A=1—HIFE

FTEETHE

SRR

REMBHRRDRIEER S ERR

%A\E%Z}EﬁEL%ZTIEU B BA 75
&= 2 A ( a%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘LFﬁZﬂ%U!K’%

E\M‘%i&%ﬁﬂu BIBR &t R e i)

fﬁ%wﬁtﬁl\'%?é%%“#&%%%@ﬁ%ﬁ“
Prgzm EmARR(T EmRA) REE
RGP PR TE R B A FE B HY o

RoLEE
BABBRETRES R ALER
B R R 2RI KA A B
BEME R AR ERERN - 8
BT X @R -

RS2 BN — AR IR ER & W) B AR A% PR A
RENAFEETE -

NYETIETS ERFGTERETHNE
FRGPLHEEEAWRDRNEZEE
BXNEOER BEmZERTEES
RIEZRAHMMAER EEHOE
Ao EHEENBENRTFEELM
AR AREGERERMIS2EEER
ERAHZEEXRBEERMERED
B e EULF 4R A M B RR T IERTE
R/ S BEREN AT ESRILESE
BT BRI R E L RIE 25k S E
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEHE®E)
(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued) mREE(E)

For investment properties which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

s BE R BAfE R A (B S 2 AN A]
BR ABFERAFEZBERMR
HZWEMEME HERTE T
REAN IR TER R E A ERMER
HR S ERF -

o BB B 2 Wi s - A FEFE
REAFEFERMABNITRERE
RAFEFERMAEHEERENER
WD BRFE VR F2RAE3R F15
LN

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F1R MAERERBNTEA TG
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the WEREEXBERNERTS
entity can access at the measurement date; B RS AR RE

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices F2HR MABRBRBIVRMEHMEN
included within Level 1, that are observable for INEESBENBEESEEA
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; BRAE: &
and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or FIM WMABREEXNBENTAE
liability. =S PN

Going concern HFELE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB132,103,000 and its total liabilities exceeded
total assets by approximately RMB44,889,000. The
Group incurred a loss for the year of approximately
RMB108,756,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Going concern (continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to finance its future working capital and finance
requirements. Certain measures have been taken to
manage its liquidity needs and to improve its financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1. The secured bank loans amounting to
RMB97,500,000 are annual by renewable revolving
loan. The secured bank loans are granted to a
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") subsidiary for
its working capital requirements. The renewable
revolving loans are secured by a pledge of the
Group's buildings with carrying amount of
approximately RMB3,575,000, leasehold land of
right-of-use assets and the land of investment
properties with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB4,194,000 and approximately RMB31,189,000
respectively. Based on the latest estimation of
the banks, the estimated marketable value of
these securities amounted to approximately
RMB107,870,000. The bank loans are also secured
by the corporate guarantee of independent third
party for RMB75,100,000 and personal guarantee
of a director of the Company for RMB133,600,000
and properties owned by a son of a director of
the Company for RMB1,370,000 respectively. The
PRC subsidiary is a profitable operation and has
net operating cash inflow, and there is no serious
deterioration in the performance of the subsidiary.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company
and based on past experience with the banks, the
Group will be able to roll over or refinance the bank
borrowings upon maturity;

2. The Group has obtained a credit facility amounting
to RMB40,000,000 in total from an independent
third party, in which part of the facility amounting
to RMB5,000,000 would expire on 30 July 2021 and
the remaining facility amounting to RMB35,000,000
would expire on 31 December 2021. The credit
facility utilised amounted to RMB32,640,000 as at
31 December 2020. The unutilised facility would be
utilised as the working capital and for financing the
ongoing business of the Group;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern (continued)

3.

The Group has obtained a loan facility from
that independent third party in amount of
RMB20,000,000, yet undrawn with a maturity date
on 25 March 2022 secured by the Group’s property.
The facility would be utilised as the working capital
and for financing the ongoing business of the
Group;

The Group will implement operational plans to
control costs and generate adequate cash flows
from the Group's operations; and

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 24 March 2021, the Company entered into a
share subscription agreement (“2021 Subscription
Agreement”) with an independent third party, in
relation to the subscription for 20,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) at HK$4
per share (the “2021 Subscription”) and a placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with a placing
agent on 24 March 2021, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to place through the placing
agent, on a best effort basis, up to 100,000,000
new Shares at HK$4 per share (the “Placing”).

On 26 March 2021, a share subscription deposit in
the sum of HK$80,000,000 had been received by
the Company. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the 2021 Subscription and Placing are
expected to be completed in April 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Going concern (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections prepared by management. The cash
flow projections cover a period of not less than fifteen
months from the date of the annual report. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the foregoing, the Group would have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
next fifteen months from the date of the annual report.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 on a going concern basis.

Should the Group and the Company be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEHE®E)
(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued) HBEANREXE(E)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"). The CODM, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment or properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments
to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use asset and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property but are under construction are presented in
“Right-of-use assets” and reclassified as investment
properties upon the completion of construction.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

J the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

TESFEE®E)

HE(E)

EEBEREREA(E)

HEEE (&)

RFtE B HERBERENBIE
RRAENFIELFE -

WHBUTER AEEEHRA
& B {5 (R 20 R0 6 PR M A fE 1 AT
FEHE)

o HHIBEMEFXITEBERERE
ZAHEEAER . EU BT
HEHER EEBEREHTE
BB 2 B RT BRI R AL REIEFT
HEMNRIMEHTE -

. BEENREERHGEEZES
HREBTERED  EULER
T AR S A R B
BT B IR (B AT 9 3T B
e

AEBRGEAMBHRRRAKEER
EE25|REFAR -

HEEET
FrCovid-19MHBAH S R R (A& E Y
HEARTRER)IN WHEBEAT
B AEEBEE 2R
BERHEAR

o RXIABRIBBIBINGER —HIMA
FHEBEEZENEAHESR
&R

s MHEREBERBMzSBHAENEX
HEHE 2 EBER  MEUR
BRATERH 2 BRIERE BIBE
IREITZEMEE HEE

RARER—REBHEHEARZBEER
FIME  AREEBERERTERA
Hl 2 ERT R R BN IR BT HEN
P RBKETHEZHRENAE
HERE-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

J the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021,
and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments
are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the
event occurs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred
by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the
initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

3.

%Aﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?{

FES_A=1—HIFE

TESHEE @)

HE (&)

rEBEERHEA(E)
AREIHE 2%
BEWERAREEERSREE MG
WELERNEIFARR  WHITRAFE
BRI EREE QA FEELS
AEER AR AR ANBEINEE

=

7H
BEASERTREEEAR HRHE
WRDPHEARSMDBEILAKN - DM
D2EZERBONEREEES BAR
BEEME  MIFSEHBEE -

HEEET
HERTEM B HE  NEB KL EH
EERIVIERFHEEAR  EhikH
FREHERBEIAANKESEHE
s RIEEEN B D HEN K -

BEKA

RS  2RILEEAFTE—RE
M%HTL&EW*%E&%%WQ
E)EEMEBNIEERATAZTE
ENRARN BERFEEENLE
HEBREAGHHEERL -

EEMEERAREEARBERER
NFERR

BERYE —ToRFFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of the transaction are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in PRC are required to participate in central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are
tangible assets held for use in the production or supply
of goods or for administrative purposes other than
properties under construction in progress as described
below are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, as the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Properties in the course of construction for properties
held to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction for that purpose are recognised
in property, plant and equipment and transferred
to investment properties upon the completion of
construction.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties also include leasehold land
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets upon
application of IFRS 16.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amounts are to be recovered principally
through sale transactions and sales are considered highly
probable. It is stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs and patents are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on a
systematic basis with reference to projected sales volume,
upon future sales volume of related products.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful life are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.

%Aﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?{

FES_A=1—HIFE

TESHEE @)

FERMEENREER

REBPR AEERIEELEE
BREME BELRE EREEE
LRERFHARNENEENKMT
B UREEEFERRBTIZETE
EXRXBEBR - WHRBEBIR
7Y% E ER Al YOl & BT
At femiEE R EEERE(A)-

ME-BEREE - FRAEEERSE
BEFHERNEFEENAKE S5
ThEBIEM  WEAGENEEN
el s AEEBETEAEER
CEABMNIKESEE -

AN AEBHEEERRBTRA
BEARLIEREETMGE 1|Jﬂ_?£
BRAS RABEAEN—HHD
FLEER REEESSEEMEAR
TELBM BRIBSKEAEES
BRh—HoEEENRNRSELE
(VAWK

A E e BRI AL ERAROD
FEEAFEREEMETNERE -1
AHEEABER G RKEERE
BRAMR R EEHRE ZHR
RRREMHSHERKREEENT
HRRFBREREMT R THENE
EE VR E LR o

BERYE —ToRFFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks or
other financial institutions and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of damages in
value, and having been within three months of maturing
of acquisition.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

TESFEE®E)

ERMTAE
BERFEENGTESHEESEME
BRE EK AN A R A B R # S R
BWARFERS L BEFER
NEeMEESEMEENTETFE
s AT BARS (i@ A ) M ERERL IR K 2R
FEFBRSRFNETR(BERBEEN
SUWE B ERFRAKE DI EF
DEE XSGR REMEEXITE)
EYATEREREFERFIE -

EHEE
THEEZ S BRAEKTE

ATk & AR 1 R
WAL -

s ZEREEMNEIANEDRE
RENZBEEEATHR K

SRBRFREERHELEZRE
=1 MM%EZHZKi&ﬂﬂEj%ZJS
&2 F 8

0

I

[ =



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®E)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) EBMTAE)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other net income and
gains” line item.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses ("ECL") on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits and bank balances and cash) which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables which are assessed individually with a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 6
months past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 365 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the aging
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

o Past-due status; and

o Nature, size and industry of debtor.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

J such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9/IAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
deposit received, other payables and accruals, short
term borrowings and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
share options reserve.

The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve. For
share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

(@]

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals
is small and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets was
approximately RMB28,125,000 (2019: RMB49,291,000) and
RMB4,533,000 (2019: RMB27,351,000) respectively. The
directors of the Company consider that no impairment loss
is required in respect of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying amounts
of the Group’s intangible asset was approximately
RMB154,000 (2019: RMB77,255,000). Impairment loss
on intangible assets for approximately RMB64,842,000
(2019: RMB234,295,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste or competitor actions. The Group
reassesses these estimates at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of inventories was approximately RMB39,127,000
(2019: RMB29,367,000), net of allowance for write-
down inventories of approximately RMB3,631,000 (2019:
RMB4,527,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
past due analysis as groupings of various debtors on
this basis which demonstrate similar loss patterns with
shared credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
trade receivables is approximately RMB44,454,000,
net of allowance for credit losses of approximately
RMB1,179,000 (2019: RMB44,784,000, net of allowance
for credit losses of RMB7,986,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2020
at their fair value of approximately RMB60,029,000
(2019: Nil). The fair value was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments are as follows:

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and sells Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the Graphene-based products segment applied the
technology know-how by applying graphene in
the production of graphene-based ethylene-vinyl
acetate (“EVA") foam material (“Graphene-based
EVA Foam Material”) and slippers (“Graphene-
based Slippers”), graphene deodorizing and
sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners
(“Sterilizing Chips”) and graphene air sterilizers
(collectively as “Graphene-based Products”); and

(c) the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other unallocated net income and
gains, amortisation of intangible assets, impairment loss
on intangible assets and assets held for sale, fair value
change on investment properties, fair value change
on provision for contingent consideration at FVTPL,
finance costs as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses.

Segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, certain right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, raw materials, work in progress,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits and cash and bank balances as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude trade and bills payables,
certain other payables and accruals, short term
borrowings, certain lease liabilities, income tax payable
and deferred tax liability as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

Year ended 31 December 2020

D EER ()

2 U R

AT RRAZHREELEHHUD A%
0 U3 T B AT o

BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=1+—HLEE

Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
B AR 2%
Em Em WM
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥TR AR¥®TR AR%®Txn
Segment revenue i L6
Sales to external customers MINREPHE 2,025 4,154 105,690 111,869
Segment results DEPEE (3,082) 1,914 10,876 9,708
Reconciliation: #EE:
Interest income FEWA 43
Other unallocated net income  Efh & D EC Ut A & U 25
and gains R 13,608
Impairment loss on trade  HERMEE 2 EWE
receivables from sales of B EEFREEIB
goods (527)
Corporate and other TrEREMARDEERAX
unallocated expenses (59,371)
Amortisation of intangible BREESE
assets (12,280)
Impairment loss on intangible 424 & B E &8
assets (64,842)
Fair value gain on investment & &# ¥ 7 A FEWRR
properties 14,073
Finance costs AR (5,912)
Loss before tax B RIEE (105,500)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEpERE
Segment revenues and results (continued) il BH&E&%?(F)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—_E—-hE+-A=t+—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EAE Ve Y
Em E FEE]

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT AREBTR

Segment revenue Pl 6
Sales to external customers RINREZPIEE 2,721 4,024 162,942 169,687
Segment results P E 3 (4,340) 2,422 20,936 19,018
Reconciliation: #HE -
Interest income M BWA 85
Other unallocated net income  E A& 2 LU A K U 25

and gains FE 2,849

Reversal of impairment loss ~ $HERBESZEKE 5
on trade receivables from FEFOREEERD

sales of goods 521
Corporate and other TEREMKRIEFRS

unallocated expenses (44,547)
Amortisation of intangible B EESH

assets (52,720)
Impairment loss on intangible & 2 & & R {E 518

assets (234,295
Impairment loss on assets BREREEERERBE

held for sale (3,000)
Fair value gain on BATEGFABR ZSEA

provision for contingent REEE 7 N

consideration at FVTPL 4,769
Finance costs AR A (6,072)
Loss before tax BR A& 1B (313,392)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. o3ERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PEHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AN B 2R ML D EE D ARE
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: EREENBES
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZHF+-A=+—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
B AR 2%
Em Em WM

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TxR

Segment assets DEIEE 606 682 66,197 67,485
Reconciliation: HEE
Corporate and other TEREMRIBEEE

unallocated assets 128,155
Total assets EEBE 195,640
Segment liabilities SHEE 300 322 - 622
Reconciliation: #HE
Corporate and other rEREMARSERR

unallocated liabilities 239,907
Total liabilities BEER 240,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PLEEREBE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hF+ZA=1+—HLEE

Graphene-

Boree based
Products Products OEM Total

EAE Ve Y
Em E FEE]

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTI AREBTR

Segment assets STHEE 1,647 3,778 53,407 58,832
Reconciliation: #E
Corporate and other TERAEMKIEEE

unallocated assets 215,566
Total assets BERAT 274,398
Segment liabilities SEEE 300 - - 300
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other TrEREMAIEAR

unallocated liabilities 226,120
Total liabilities BlEERE 226,420

BigRE —Z-RFFHR
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

D EER ()
Hith 5 3 E R
BE-S-FF+-A=t-HILEFE

Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
BEAE AERK
Em Em k]
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%BTn AR®Tr AR%®Txn
Included in segment SEEF(FER)BHE
profit/(loss) are:
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ EEBRELZEWE S
impairment loss on trade R CREEERD),/
receivables from sales of BB E 1
goods (32) 34 525 527
Reversal of write-down of e3¢ 0: % qE
inventories (400) - (496) (896)
(369)

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-ZE—-hE+=-A=+—HILEE

Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EUN ARG
Em = e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BTT ARETT AR®TT
Included in segment EESHEF
profit/(loss) are: (BE)RETA
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ SEEEMELZEKE S
impairment loss on trade R CREBERRD),/
receivables from sales of WEEE
goods (97) 41 (465) (521)
(Reversal of write-down)/ BE (WoREm) /W
write-down of inventories (330) - 496 166
(355)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. OEERE)
Geographical information & &R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) XREIIREFH K
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BT T ARETTT

PRC (principal place of operations) RE(FELEE) 8,778 10,898

United States of America ("US") FEFER & RE([EE ) 97,515 152,168

South America EEI 123 782

Europe B 2,061 2,629

South East Asia R 141 316

Other countries =R ETER 3,251 2,894

111,869 169,687

The revenue information above is based on the A EWEBREREFMNEE
locations of the customers. 40

(b) Non-current assets (b) ¥REEE

2020 2019

—E_EH —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BT T ARETT

PRC (principal place of operations) B (EB LB ) 92,841 153,897
The non-current assets information above is based A EIERBEEER HENRNEE
on the locations of the assets. NEBEED -

BigRE —Z-RFFHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

D EER ()

TEEFNER

RAABFRE  KEEP 2GS E A%
ERRHEREI10% EEMT -

as follows:
2020 2019
—EBERE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET AREET T
Customer A ZEA 74,834 80,164
Customer B =B 15,066 27,169
Customer C* ZEC* 1,615 33,744
* Revenue from Customer C contributed less than 10% * KARPCZIWHREAEFBEZE —

of the total sales of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Group’s major customers are included in the OEM
segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue and other net income and gains is

HBRRE
%7\ mﬁ}ﬁ‘g ©

FES_A=1—HIFE

6. Wz HAWARKEFHE
WA AEEEE ¥R HER
S RESTHRENEER

2
A

Yo 2 Ko At I R Ui 2 0% R BN o0 A 0

as follows: ™
2020 2019
—BEF — N
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Revenue Wz
Recognized at a point in time RE—REBRER
Manufacture and sale of goods AERHEESM 111,869 169,687
Other net income and gains Ht g A R Wz 88
Interest income AEHA 43 85
Sales of scrap materials SHERSE - 574
Rental income from investment properties &%t A 1,445 -
Rental income under operating leases KREMEMREENHESBA 1,330 467
Subsidy income* GEM N 3,298 1,532
Exchange gain, net ME 5 W F 5E - 256
Reversal of provision for social security HERESBEERE 5,154 -
Reversal of long outstanding payables RHEAFE T KB E 2,265 -
Rent concession HEeER 52 -
Gain on termination of lease LIEHE W 24 -
Others Hith 40 20
13,651 2,934

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

relating to these subsidies.

* WA R R S R RO AR E R R

HEAEM °

FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2020 2019
—EC-EHF —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T

Interest on bank loans RITREMEERE

and other borrowings 5,868 5,890
Interest on letters of credit ZRERN 2 - 111
Interest on lease liabilities Tﬂf_fi% fﬂ 44 /1
5,912 6,072
BEFY —S-TFEFER
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8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. KMREAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBMBBATEEBD NG (5TA)
(crediting) the following items: LATIER :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®ET T
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA* 94,762 139,402
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BB MR BT E
equipment* 6,217 6,131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* FREEENE 750 1,315
Amortisation of intangible assets & 12,280 52,720
Employee benefit expenses (including EEBNAS(BEES
directors’ remuneration - note 9)*: e —BfsE9)* :
Wages and salaries TENES 44,513 53,474
Equity-settled share-based payments IS 45 E AR D
RER R 15,889 5,299
Staff welfares BE®BA 1,022 821
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIKB R EI
schemes 3,192 3,357
64,616 62,951
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ERED BN & 1,511 1,357
Impairment loss on intangible assets EBREEEREBE 64,842 234,295
Impairment loss on assets held for sale & BEFEEE R EERE - 3,000
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment  $§EREREL 2 EWE F R
loss) on trade receivables from sales of FORERE OB EEE R
goods /) 527 (521)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of FE R EE), MR
inventories (896) 166
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEYE  BEREHEIER
plant and equipment B8 614 139
Exchange loss/(gain) net PE 5 185k (Uezs ) B 58 1,946 (256)
Research and development costs** T B B AN * * 14,055 10,683
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

*

The cost of inventories sold for the year ended 31
December 2020 included approximately RMB27,822,000
(2019: RMB34,441,000) relating to direct staff costs,
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, depreciation of
right-of-use assets and operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these
types of expenses.

Employee benefit expenses included payment to Dr. Xu
Zhi, who was subsequently appointed as Director on 26
February 2021 for approximately RMB3,380,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:RMB1,408,000).

The research and development costs for the year ended
2020 includes approximately RMB8,678,000 (2019:
RMB8,213,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of
research and developement facilities and depreciation
of right-of-use assets, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these
types of expenses. The amounts are included in “General
and administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

FES_A=1—HIFE

8. I@ﬁﬂuﬁﬂﬁ(ﬁ

BE-_Z-FTF+A=+—8HL
FECEFENABRENARKE
27,822,000 (ZF—NF: ARK
34,441,0007T) W EEEBKA - &£
EXREITE FABEENENR
T REFHESLEHEERS)
EEE MEFFA LR ESLE
2 H TR A AR 8 o

RERFFALBEEE T -_TF
+=-—A=+— Eﬁiﬁﬁ#iﬁ
T(HER-_ZE-_—F A=+
BEZTAES) ZHROARE
3,380,000 (ZE—NF: AR
1,408,0007T ) ©

HEZZ-_ZF+-A=1+—1tF
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁAE%&w&mo
T(ZZE—NF: AR¥S,213,000
TC) BB A « B R B ITE R (E
AEEENE HEEBIFETA
FXFBEBESERYMEBAE-
hESBEFAGGBEREME
AR [ —RRITEHAS] -

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the
years, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Companies
(Disclosure of information about benefits of directors)
Regulations (Cap. 622G), are as follows:

EERFERTHAESME

*E%F A ETRA - BEQFEH &

NR(BBEESF=ER)RH(E
622GE ) FIEENFEESTREETT
BAEMEMT :

2020 2019
—EF —ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEF T
Fees (note a) & (note b) W& (Hfata) X (Hiatb) 570 566
Other emoluments: B -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in — % EANEY
kind (note b) & (note c) BRI (Hath) K (Biazc) 1,710 1,534
— Contributions to retirement benefits —RIREFET IR
schemes (note b) & (note c) (KtaEb) 2 (B itc) 51 45
— Equity-settled share-based payments —RREEEUARG /E
(note c) R R (B atc) - 196
2,331 2,341
B —T_TEERHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEME ()
REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes Kzt
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIUFHTEES
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive RAEFENSENBIIIENTES
directors during the current year are as follows: RS
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Ms. An Na i+ 180 177
Professor Zhao Jinbao e R 106 106
Mr. Chen Shaohua BRAZERE 177 177
463 460
There were no other emoluments payable to the ER-WEENEBEIFRTESH
independent non-executive directors during the year Hile (ZZ—NnE:M|)-
(2019: Nil).
(b) Non-executive director (b) EHITES
The fees paid or payable to non-executive director during REREMNKENIERTEENE
the current year are as follows: U
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Ms. Lin Weihuan: MIEE
Fee e 107 106
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYREF 90 37
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes iR (R 1& F| 5 2 4 2 13 4
210 147
Ms. Lin Weihuan was appointed as the financial MEBZTR_E—-AFENA—H
consultant of a subsidiary of the Company on 1 August BEZERAREZ —HKEARN

' NN .

2019 and her emoluments disclosed include those for MR K LM e REER

F S BRI AT IR AR TS 2 BN o

services rendered by her as the financial consultant.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EERFETHAEMEHE)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Notes (continued) Biat (&)
() Executive directors and chief executive officer () BITEERITHAR
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  Equity-settled  to retirement
and benefits share-based benefits
Fees in kind payments schemes Total
BRELE
#¢ 2ER IRBARER BARER
Be ENER MR HE L5 g%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR

Year ended 31 December 2020  BE=R=%f%
TZAZT-BLEE

Mr. Leung Tz Chung REmiE - 1,178 - 16 1,194
Mr. Zheng Jingdong' BRR%E - vy - 2 464
- 1,620 - 38 1,658

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits share-based benefits
Fees inkind payments schemes Total

ERELE

GeEMRk  URDAER RICER
fiEA B #f5 HEER 28
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2019  HE=-E-N&

TZAZT-HLEE
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung RFRSE - 929 - 16 945
Mr. Zheng Jingdong HernkE - 568 196 25 789
- 1,497 196 4 1,734
There was no arrangement under which a director and FRNMETLES RITHRAEK
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any ERRAEREAMNMES 228 (=
remuneration during the year (2019: Nil). T—NFE) -

BERYE —ToRFFH
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEBRSHES
The five highest paid employees* during the year include TR AEEaHEE*PTEEES
no director and chief executive officer, (2019: two EITHEHR(ZE—hFE: MEE
directors) details of whose remuneration are set out in E) BENNESFEBEN LXK
note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of Qe ANAHEBRAH(ZE—NF: =
the remaining five (2019: three) highest paid employee ZIEENIFTHAENRS FE
who is neither a director nor chief executive officer of the ENAFENMEFEBOT ¢

Company are as follow:

2020 2019
—e-®E T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TF T ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 « Z8E R EVWREF 2,211 2,305
Contributions to retirement benefits BRIRERET AR

schemes 59 47
Equity-settled share-based payments B EEE ARG

RERERK 10,110 736

12,380 3,088

The remuneration of the remaining highest paid
employees are fallen within the following bands:

\|

I EEFEREZHMEN FUATE

ol

Number of employees

EEHE
2020 2019
i —E-NF
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR #500,0017T

% AK%1,000,0007T - 2

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,0017C
2= AR ¥1,500,0007T - 1

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017C
Z= AR¥2,000,0007T - _

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 A K #2,000,0017C
% AR #2,500,0007T 4 -

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR ®2,500,0017C
2= AR ¥3,000,0007T - -

RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 AR #3,000,0017C
Z= AR ¥3,500,0007C 1 -
5 3
* Five highest paid employees in 2020 and 2019 included * TECEERCTE-NEREES
Dr. Xu Zhi, who was subsequently appointed as Director FEEREEER_ZE-_—F_A
on 26 February 2021. T+ ARBEZAREEHNTELE

+ o
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FTEHBEX
2020 2019
—B-BE T hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET ARET T

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI SR

Charge for the year FAEH 200 600
Under—provisions in prior years BAFERETE 197 378
Deferred tax EAER IR 2,859 66
Total tax expense for the year FRRIBERZ 3,256 1,044
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided HRANEERNARFEETANEELS
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits {E{a] 89 FE SR AL S5 A - 8 4 B O
arising in Hong Kong for the year (2019: Nil). Taxes NEFRBE(ZE—NF: BE) -hEH
on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated B E SRR S A R IBE TR IR 1T
at the prevailing rates, based on existing legislation, EO - REB L ERIZERABREAE -

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BERECEMER E([EFRER
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT EDRDEMRGSEEETHIEN  BHE
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: F—EEERESFRMNCEEBRYF
25%), except for one of the PRC subsidiaries which has HffE AR EREA_ZE—NEL_FT
been granted Advanced and New Technology Enterprise TEFEZHIS%HBIEFTE R R E
status which entitles the subsidiary to a reduced income SN REB AT R A25%(—F
tax rate at 15% for 2019 and 2020. — L& 25%)e

BERYE —ToRFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to
the “loss before tax” per consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as below:

M. FIEHEAX )
£ PO BLIE B ST/ ) T AR & 1B 35
B fth 2 E U a5 R AT 2 5 60 [ BB AT S
BIEENT

2020 2019

—ECEF —ZT-hF

RMB’000 RMB"000

AR®T T AR®EF T

Loss before tax BRIERIEE (105,500) (313,392)

Tax at the applicable tax rates RERABEGTENNIE (16,858) (53,329)

Income not subject to tax BARTUA (2,279) (1,829)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  ~a] AR LU B B9F1E E

< 15,393 55,863

Tax effect of tax loss utilised EBARIBERNTETE - (105)
Tax effect of temporary differences AERLH =R 2THE

not recognised B 2,859 66

Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERTIBEENRGZE 3,944 -

Under-provision of income tax in prior years @7t & FrS T 2 197 378

Income tax expense for the year FRMEHAX 3,256 1,044

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate for the withholding tax is
5% (2019: 5%). In estimating the withholding taxes
on dividends expected to be distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors of the
Company have made assessment based on the factors
which included dividend policy and the level of capital
and working capital required for the Group's operations
in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax liability has
been provided for retained profit as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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BN EE B R A RMT AR
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

12.

13.

At 31 December 2020, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2019: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company's subsidiaries
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$762,000 (2019: HK$762,000)
equivalent to approximately RMB678,000 (2019:
RMB671,000) available for offsetting against future
profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
included a loss of approximately RMB949,212,000 (2019:
RMB232,654,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 44(i)).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 and since the end of the
reporting period.

1.

12.

13.

FRr&HR< (%)

RZE-_EF+-_A=+—H &=
B it AE%  pa] R RBEH DI
AN R B A B B AR BE H & ) B A
BIKME  WEEXKERETH
HAB(ZZE—NEF  8)-

R A) A E P ERR A B A% B B A
FriSHi

RZEZTF+—A=+—H 4%
B 7 ok B) A Y I8 B5 18 49762,0007%8 7T
(ZZE— A% : 762,000 7T)(HEER
# AR #678,000 ( ZFE— N F :
/\Emm,oooﬂ‘fﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂix;ﬁ
*'J’ EEE/\\\EEKB?I%U/}\LTTTE E“J
?ﬁﬁﬁwlﬁﬁﬁéﬂéﬁ@wﬁuﬁlﬁﬁé

BIBBEAT ERAET -
ERARHEBAEIEES
BE-Z-TF+-A=+—ALF

IERVN/N T}z&ﬁ/\mmmm EERIE
518 49 A R #949,212,0000( = &
—&F: AR#232,654,0007T ) B
TEARR R Bz EIE (HI5E44())

Ei/?l\

@i—?—?ﬂz&—? jlf'5+:ﬂ
=+ —HIEFEUEBZ2MIRAK
Wi IR AR,

BERY —T-ZTFER
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14. LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RMB108,756,000
(2019: RMB314,436,000) and the number of Shares of
1,486,859,608 in issue (2019: weighted average number
of Shares of 1,453,805,361) during the year.

The number of Shares used to calculate the basic loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020 included the
1,486,859,608 Shares in issue as at 1 January 2020 and
31 December 2020.

The weighted average number of Shares used to calculate
the basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 included the 1,304,059,608 Shares in issue as at 1
January 2019 and 182,800,000 Shares issued on 8 March
2019 in respect of the completion of subscription of new
Shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s share options as the exercise of the
Company’s share options would result in a decrease in
loss per share, and is regarded as anti-dilutive.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. MI% -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and Motor  andofficc  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements  in progress Total
B £ER
BF HERKE RE  BLERE RERE RRIE Ex
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-nF-A-A 45,243 28,824 1,359 7,3% 18,218 19,807 120,845
Additions bl - 3223 - 33 750 197 4,203
Disposals HE - (1,149) - (24) - - (1173)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA
=1+-H 45,243 30,898 1,359 7,403 18,968 20,004 123,875
Accumulated depreciation: 5T E:
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-B 36,093 17,013 1,217 6,040 9,067 - 69,430
Provided during the year EREE 3,054 1820 51 2143 963 - 6,131
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (954) - (23) - - (977)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA
-t-H 39,147 17,879 1,268 6,260 10,030 - 74,584
Net carrying amount: R E:
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA
=t+-H 6,09 13,019 91 1143 8,938 20,004 49,291
Cost: WA
At 1 January 2020 RZE-2F-f-H 45,243 30,898 1,359 7403 18,968 20,004 123,875
Additions g - 3330 - 13 2,210 4,267 9,820
Transfer inflout) #A/ (1) - 197 - - - (e (078)
Disposalsfwrte-off e/ - (1,002) - M @50 - (3519)
At 31 December 2020 e
=t-H 45,243 33,423 1,359 7409 18,668 - 106,102
Accumulated depreciation: 5 E:
At 1 January 2020 R-E-%5-A-H 39,147 17,879 1,268 6,260 10,030 - 74,584
Provided during the year £ 2521 1,925 2 25 1,505 - 6,217
Eliminated on disposals/ e/ HE
write-off - (904) - W)l (1,913) - (2,824)
At 31 December 2020 et s
=f-H 41,668 18,900 1,289 6,498 9,622 - 11911
Net carrying amount; BEFE:
At 31 December 2020 R_F-BET_F
=t-H 3,575 14,523 10 m 9,046 - 28,125
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

office equipment
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5 years

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are
held under medium term leases.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB3,575,000 (2019:
RMB6,096,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. M3 - BB KR ()

EaE - R RREER AT
RIREREE -

EF FAHI K20 2
BEE

R 55 N e 25 104

B 54

R EER 5F

PWNERME

HERE FAHNSFE 2

BEE

AREENEFHURTE  RIE+TH
MERE -

AEBECEBRERFENDARE
3,575,000c( ZZE —NLF: AR
6,096,0007T) KIEFIE RN EEER
—RIBITELE AVFELR ©

16. REWE

RMB’'000

ARBTT

As at 1 January 2020 W_ZE_ZEF—H—H -

Upon the completion of construction: ML5EK & :

Building-transfer from property, BF-EREME WEIEE

plant and equipment 24,074

Land-transfer from right-of-use assets T -EBEEERAEEE 21,882

Fair value gain on investment properties KEMEZ A ENER 14,073

As at 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+-A=1+—H 60,029

Representing: HER:
Land b
Building BF

The Group’s properties located in the PRC are leased to
a third party to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties on
initial recognition on completion of construction and
as at 31 December 2020 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out by Quanzhou Heyi Assets
and Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd, an independent
professional valuer. In estimating the fair value of the
investment properties, the management of the Group has
considered the highest and best use of the investment
properties.
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16.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — % —

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group has pledged the land of investment
properties with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB31,189,000 to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. The building of investment
properties with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB28,840,000 was pledged to secure loan facility from

an independent third party.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

Fair value Valuation
techniques

Fair Value hierarchy

Significant
unobservable
inputs and ranges

ﬁAﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ%%W#?I

FES_A=1—HIFE

16. WEWHE (%)
AEBEHEBAEMEFEHOARE
31,189,000 T 2 & E M=+ By £ b 1E
AREBER —RBTHENER-
IREFEA A REE28,840,0007T 2 1%
EYMEPNEFEEBEL LB ILE
ZHIEEERRMEMNER-

AEBZREYMEQVETE

TEREREEREMERAFEEETT

& R Bl 2 BT B A B9 4 (B il Re 8 A

2g) 2 ER URRBEAFEFEZ

%A%F%Tﬁmﬁfﬁy“iﬁﬁ

ENBREARFESRZEBHR(E
EZRIZER-

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value

\ BUBEY
TERNUBRE BAHBE
AVE DVESER REAR ZBAHBREE DNFENBE
2020
—g-g=
RMB'000
AREFT
Investment properties 31,189 Level 3 Combination of (1) Benchmark land price: An increase in the benchmark land
located in PRC - cost method RMB636 per square meter  price would result in an increase
Land and income in fair value.
method
Investment properties 28,840 Level 3 Combination of (1) Newness rate of building: ~ An increase in the newness rate
located in PRC- cost method 93% - 95% of building would result in an

Building
method
IR E 2R EY%E 31,189 =4 BASE R e
) HHA
IR B 2 A% 28,840 HE=1 PR R e
7@? /f,ﬁ/\

and income

Annual rate of return:

7.20

Rate

income: 0.5%

Estimated market rent for

simil

per square meter

HE(E - FPRARK636

increase in fair value.

An increase in the annual rate
% of return would result in an
significant increase in fair value.

of change of annual  An increase in the rate of change
of annual income would result
in an significant increase in fair

value.

An increase in the estimated
market rent for similar building
would result in an increase in fair
value.

ERE FARIBATFELN-

ar building RMB9.70

7T

BFRHNE : 93%-95% BTRHME L@ B FEEM-

FHME 7.20% Eﬁ?tiﬂAaﬁ ATEEA
=Y

FYRBLE :0.5% EWHEE e BRTE
ﬁiam °

EEHERRETERE MHDERBETHES LGN

FARARE. 70T RTEEMe
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EAEEE
Land for
development
Leasehold of investment Leased
lands properties properties Total
REMX
HELH BE Rt HEME ot

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARBTR

Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HA—H 4,488 22,466 1,255 28,209
Additions it - - 457 457
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-hEF

1 January 2020 +ZA=+-Bk

“E-%FF—-F—H 4,438 22,466 1,712 28,666

Additions it - - 345 345
Write-off e - - (879) (879)
Transfer to investment properties Rk 2RAERE

on completion of construction REME - (22,466) - (22,466)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ-ZEH+-A=1+-H 4,488 - 1,178 5,666
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-F—-H—H - - - -
Provided for the year FERERB 147 584 584 1,315
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NEF

1 January 2020 +ZA=+—8k

—E-TF—-A—H 147 584 584 1,315

Provided for the year FREE 147 - 603 750
Write-off K - - (348) (348)
Transfer to investment properties  FATERERBERE

on completion of construction L ES - (584) - (584)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB-EBF+-A=+-H 294 - 839 1,133
Net carrying amount; BREFE
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZF+-A=+—H 4,194 - 339 4,533
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AF+ZA=+—H 4,341 21,882 1,128 27,351
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 17. FHREEE &)

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T AREETIT

Expense relating to short-term leases 242 HAFRE M A HIR 128 AR

and other leases with lease terms TENEMAERBHAY
end within 12 months 2,231 384

Total cash outflow for leases FAHEE RS RLRARE

for the year 1,328 1,014
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. B EE

020 Deferred
distribution development
Technology vending costs
Know-how system and patents Total
EERR
0204 84 BA
B AR EERA RER ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(notes a, ¢)  (notes b, ¢) (note d)
(Ktiza-c) (Kfitb-c) (Ktizd)
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 RN—_E—-NEF—H—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,553 1,740,071
Addition i - - 24 24
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=Z—NF
TZA=+—-RARk
“Z2-TF—F—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,577 1,740,095
Addition it - - 21 21
At 31 December 2020 NZE-EEF
+-A=1+—"H 1,587,518 60,000 92,598 1,740,116
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: 25t 4 % i fE -
At 1 January 2019 N_E—-NE—A—H 1,299,518 11,560 64,747 1,375,825
Provided for the year FERBE 39,273 6,605 6,842 52,720
Impairment loss for the year FERREEE 187,727 25,835 20,733 234,295
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZ—NF
TZA=+t—-BR
—Z-TF—-H—H 1,526,518 44,000 92,322 1,662,840
Provided for the year FREHE 9,632 2,526 122 12,280
Impairment loss for the year FNREER 51,368 13,474 - 64,842
At 31 December 2020 NZE-EF
+-R=+—-"H 1,587,518 60,000 92,444 1,739,962
Net carrying amount: BREFE -
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF
+-A=+—H - - 154 154
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NE
+ZA=+—H 61,000 16,000 255 77,255
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

It represented technological know-how in respect of the
application of graphene and includes one patent in the US
("US Patent”), four invention patent applications, three
utility model patent applications and two utility model
patents in the PRC (collectively as “PRC Patents”), relating
to the manufacturing of Graphene-based EVA Foam
Material, Sterilizing Chips and graphene-based pressure-
sensitive sensors and the exclusive formula (collectively
“Technology Know-how"), which was acquired from
Bluestone Technologies (Cayman) Limited (“Bluestone”),
an independent third party, in 2015.

The completion date of the transaction (“Completion
Date”) was 16 December 2015. The cost of the
Technology Know-how was determined by the directors
of the Company and represented the sum of the cash
consideration, the fair value of the convertible notes and
provision for contingent consideration at the acquisition
date (note 28), and the capitalised transaction costs
arising directly from the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how. The Group’s first graphene application
products mass production line was completed and
commenced trial production in late May 2016, and mass
production has already been commenced in July 2016.

The Technology Know-how has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 10 years using the straight-line method.

In July 2016, the Group acquired the design of Online-
to-Offline (“020") distribution vending system at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000 from two independent
third parties. The directors of the Company consider
that the 020 distribution vending system would provide
customers with an interactive and unique shopping
experience, enhance the distribution channel of the
products made by the Group and establish the core
technical competitiveness of the Group.

The 020 distribution vending system has definite useful
lives and is amortised over 9 years using the straight-line
method.

SECTEICASt-ALEE

18- /\\\E/EE(»\
Wt -

(a)

EEEOERERNORMAME £
BR-_Z-—hFRBEILE=7EA
MR (FE)ERAR(TERK
BNEBEEELRBEVATOANE
REGH R O2GENEREHNE

B—EER ([ZEFEAN]) - HEO
BEREFNRF —BEANLE
MEBLEMEERAMEEN (R
BIPEERNDARBRET (5
TR (BRI ) -

XopzxeRBH(TEXBHR

—HE+ZA+RA KA
BOKABARRESEE HER
ERE TBRERERIARKER
WU B B (B (B RE28)
EERBBERMABMEENE
RERXRGRARZ BB - AREE—
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EWER-_ZTE-—REFLtAMHER
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(0

(continued)

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the 020 distribution vending system
with reference to a valuation of the 020 distribution
vending system conducted by an independent professional
valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited
("Ascent Partners”), using relief from royalty method and
considered that provision for impairment to the carrying
amount of the 020 distribution vending system of
approximately RMB13,474,000 (2019: RMB25,835,000)
should be made as at 31 December 2020.

The relief from royalty method measures value by
estimating budgeted sales associated with the intangible
asset (i.e. 020 distribution vending system) over its useful
life and then applying an appropriate royalty rate to the
revenue estimate. It measures the costs that are avoided
(the royalty payments that are not made) due to the
firm’s ownership of the intangible asset. The royalty rate
of approximately 10.00% (2019: 10.00%) was used and
the present value of the estimated royalty payments is
calculated using discount rate of approximately 20.93%
(2019: 20.90%). Assumption of budgeted sales was based
on estimated daily average sales of slippers from 020
distribution vending system and expected growth rate of
product mix.

The directors of the Company consider that 020
distribution vending system is a contributory asset
necessary to support the earnings associated with the
Technology Know-how (collectively “CGU"), being the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
earnings that are largely independent of the earnings from
other assets.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

18.

BVEEW)
At (4)

(b)

(@

(%)

AAGIEEDHO20DHEER
GETREFSG L2EBUE
EHEMMAFELAERADA
(XA EREREFEER
BAHO200 HEERMETH
HE RBRZZEZZEF+=A
=+ —HEEBHRO200HEE XA
MEEEFRBAERBEOARE
13,474,0007T ( —Z—HE: AR
25,835,000) °

SREBHEERBEEBRATER
EE (BO200HEERG) RET
FRFHANEEBEHETEE
B HEeERAEERTEERAEX
Bt Bt EEARHERE
EMATAEmEEmMMK A (IR
NETEERSB) -FTERMNES
EFRERA410.00% (ZE— N
F:10.00%) EHFHFFEERE
R IR A A B IR £ 4920.93%
(ZZE—NEFE:2090%):tE-78Z
HEBRBRENRO20D HETEZLY
HE R EEREEERERAE
ARTEHER K

RRAFEFRR 0200 HEE R
BR-—ELENERIEEENIS
BB AZAAER AN (5 [RE
EXEM]) HEEERNBINE
B E R M2 BN &Nl # R &
EEAR -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

(continued)

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the Technology Know-how with reference
to a valuation of the Technology Know-how conducted
by Ascent Partners, using multi-period excess earnings
method and considered that provision for impairment
to the carrying amount of the Technology Know-how of
approximately RMB51,368,000 (2019: RMB187,727,000)
should be made as at 31 December 2020. The multi-
period excess earnings method is based on a discount
rate of approximately 22.93% (2019: 22.90%) and
financial forecasts approved by the directors of the
Company. Assumption of budgeted sales was based
on estimated daily average sales of slippers from 020
distribution vending system and expected growth rate
of product mix. Other key assumptions for the multi-
period excess earnings method relate to the estimation
of earnings which include estimated gross profit margin,
operating expenses and working capital requirements,
such estimation is based on the expected and forecasted
performance generated from the past performance of
the CGU and management’s expectations for the market
development.

In July 2016, the Group engaged several independent
third parties in the research and development of
manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on Sterilizing Chips, energy storage materials for
batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes
("Other Deferred Development Costs”). The directors
of the Company seeks the opportunities in applying the
graphene material in products other than shoes and plan
to launch in future.

The Sterilizing Chips has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 5 years using the straight-line method.

The directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment on the Sterilizing Chips and considered
that the future economic benefits attributable to the
Sterilizing Chips is premature and provision for impairment
of approximately RMB20,733,000 was made as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amount
represented the cost of acquisition of patents for research
and development of manufacturing and application
technology of graphene material on certain products.

FoECEEf A=+ —HIEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z_—L-FF+-_H=+—HIFE

19. INVENTORIES 19. 78

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREET T
Raw materials and consumables R KB FEm 12,701 7,228
Work in progress FES 8,016 8,268
Finished goods RIS 18,410 13,871
39,127 29,367
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the reversal of BE_T - TF+_A=1t—HIF
write-down of inventories of approximately RMB896,000 [ R8RSR T & MUR R = 4
(2019: write-down of inventories RMB166,000) was AR®896,000(ZE—NF : &

recognised in the profit or loss. R A R ¥ 166,0007T ) ©

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. BRE B R
2020 2019
—EBERE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREET T
Trade receivables from sales of goods HERRELEZERKES

8RR 45,633 52,770
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (1,179) (7,986)

44,454 44,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

: EELI&%%EE K ()

EHRYR AEEEWE SRR
E%Eﬂ%%ﬁ‘ﬁf&& HEEHEI D H
FREeDATINT

2020 2019

—=F —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Within 3 months 31E AR 42,167 39,440
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A 1,635 3,637
7 to 9 months 7Z291d A 652 1,707
44,454 44,784

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are past due
but not impaired:

B MEREENEWE 5 RAN R
mA/'\*ﬁ.

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Past due but not impaired: EaHERRE
Within 3 months 3@ A A 970 3,637
4 to 6 months 42 61E A 55 1,707
7 to 9 months 7Z291E A 609 -
1,634 5,344

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period offered to its
customers is generally for a period of three to six
months. The Group seeks to apply strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed reqgularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest- bearing.

AEBEEFNEHGRERUEE
ET MEPREHENEER —RA=
EREA - $%léﬁ(ﬁlﬂﬁ%ﬁ*¢ RfE
& e e R R ]I ﬁf:.ffﬁ*i B
F'ﬁ AOBEEERR & ?&EEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
payment record, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Detail of impairment assessment of trade receivables for

20.

FEW & 5 BRFR (47)

E 8 BB SRR E B FE U SR IR S ) % fE
HAEEERIERLBNBILE
FPoREBENRRLE NRRRES
R BRNEEERLEEANE

BZFEA DA R 280 E - SH
JAVEHIRE B o

BE-_Z_TFE+_A=1t—HIL#F

the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 40. B EWESERZBMET HFBEEH
FABFEE40 ©
21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. ANRIE RERHEMER
RECEIVABLES b=
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R AR®EFTT
Prepayments: TERTFRIA
— Advanced to suppliers — [t TR K 2,999 2,840
- Others —EAftb 987 913
Deposits: B’
— Acquisition of equipment —BEXRE 6,888 8,638
— Others —HA 308 375
Other receivables: Eoh Y RIE
- For disposal of assets held for sale —HEHEFELE
(note 23) (K17E23) - 23,000
— Rental receivable — WS 444 -
- Others —Ht 414 606
Value-added Tax (“VAT") recoverable FERIBER ([EER]) 2,773 2,022
14,813 38,394

As at 31 December 2020, other than prepayments and
VAT recoverable which do not have any due dates, none
of the above assets is either past due or impaired (2019:
Nil). The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default.

Detail of impairment assessment of other receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 40.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK

BALANCES

Bank deposits amounting to approximately RMB3,780,000
(2019: RMB3,855,000) have been pledged to secure bills
payables of RMB12,600,000 (2019: RMB12,850,000)
(note 24).

At 31 December 2020, the amount denominated
in RMB included in cash and bank balances and
pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately
RMB3,971,000 (2019: cash and bank balances amounted
to RMB5,869,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under the PRC Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earned interest
at fixed rate ranging from 1.55% to 1.75% (2019:
1.55%) per annum. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
history of default. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of bills payables.

22. CERER RERBRTHEER

HE-Z-ZF+-_H=T—HLHF
B BEEHARE3780,000t( ==
— &« AR¥3,855,0007T)KIER1T
FRE A AR®12,600,000T( —F
—nF: AR#12,850,0007T ) B fE
NEBELDRER(HE24)0

RZZE-FTFE+-_A=+—H HUA
REAENRE RBITEABRREEH
RITTFER AN AREE3,971,000T( =
T—NF BehRITEBAEARE
5,869,000 ) AR A B A K #
A E A & #E o SR T - AR AR P B ANE B
D & e SERNFEEIER
FASEREAEFBRERETINEESE
TEHERTTIE AR B K B A SN o

BITHESREBRBTERFNEMED
FEE R B - BERFRIREE /A
155%ZE1.75%MBEEF (==
— L 1 1.55%) B - RITHEBKRE
ERFERTHREEEEEEBRLEE
RRTT - B ERARITERERER

SRS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

23. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 10 October 2017, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
(the “Buyer”) at a consideration of RMB26,000,000 to
dispose of certain property, plant and equipment with
land use right located in PRC. In accordance with IFRS
5, the disposal assets were reclassified as assets held
for sale in 2017. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the transfer of legal title of the disposal asset was
in progress and non-refundable deposit amounting to
RMB16,500,000 had been received. On 16 September
2019, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement to the sales and purchase agreement with
the Buyer and agreed to reduce the consideration by
RMB3,000,000 due to the quality issue. In 2019, the
transaction had been completed as the land use right had
been transferred to the Buyer. The remaining balance was
received in 2020.

23.

The major classes of assets held for sale are as follows:

REGEEE

R-ZE—tF+A+H AEHEE—
%ﬁ*”*ﬁqﬁﬁbﬂﬁﬁgﬁ
- LA (B A K #26,000,0007T i &
?%% B 55 B 5% A DA Rz A R R
ZIwERE-R-_FT—LF RIE
BRI BHREERFES  HEEES
HMOBARBREEE-BE_T
—NFT+ZA=+—RHIEFE L&
BERLMARNERDEETIR

BEWRTATRENZRS ARK
16,500,0007T° 7> — & — ﬂiﬂﬂ

TARBE AEBRE SR VE B HH
M YEAEERER BB
BR 2 A K %3,000,0007T A= F
—NEF AREEDERREDEE
WED REARXRHERZFATK-
HECRN T _TFYI -

RAEFEEEIZEBMT

RMB’000

AR®T T

Building and leasehold improvements BFREEEE 44,318

Prepaid land lease payments iﬁﬁiiﬁﬁﬁi\ 4,926

Impairment loss recognised in 2017 R IE—FHERREEE (23,244)
As at 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R-_ZT— \F—H— EI —N\F

and 1 January 2019 T A=t+—BR= jli A—H 26,000

Impairment loss recognised in 2019 RZE—NFHER MTE)EETE' (3,000)

Transfer to other receivables (note 21) R EH M R RIA (M E21) (23,000)

As at 31 December 2019 R-E—-hhF+-_A=+—H -

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24. BNEZRRRENRE

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Trade payables FETE ZRREK 53,105 44,006

Bills payables ANES 12,600 12,850

65,705 56,856
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE _—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HIF)ZF

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables

25.

24, F”Eﬁ%%?ﬁ R BN R IE (40
ERMK AEEENBSEAR

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the J,jﬁmﬁ%h:z BEHHIORERE DT
invoice dates, is as follows: T

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NEF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET AREEF T

Within 3 months 31E AR 40,993 41,913

Over 3 months 3E A A E 24,712 14,943

65,705 56,856

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on six months terms (2019: six months).
Bills payable of approximately RMB12,600,000 (2019:
RMB12,850,000) were secured by the Group's pledged
deposits amounted to approximately RMB3,780,000
(2019: RMB3,855,000) as at 31 December 2020.

EME ZERFKTE B B—RI/NE
A(ZE—NAF: XEA)REE-R
—E-EF+-_RA=+—H K&EHE
BB EHTHOARYS,780,000
TL(ZZE—NF : AR¥3,855,0007T)
A4 N R 812,600,000 ( ZF— AN
F . AR #12,850,0007T ) H JE {1+ 2

RIEHELR -

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 25. EWRE  HttENARIERE
AND ACCRUALS TEHA
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFTT
Deposits received: BYIES -
— From customers —BPENIE 300 300
— For disposal of assets held for sale —HEREHFEEE
(non-refundable) (TARE) - 16,500
— Others —HAth 682 380
VAT payables FEfTIBETR 6 -
Accruals JEStER 12,033 9,544
Other payables o th &~ 3KI8 25,905 24,829
38,926 51,553
All accruals and other payables are expected to be settled PR FET & A K H ith e SRIB TR AR
within one year. —FRNEE-

B e

—ECEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z_—L-FF+-_H=+—HIFE

26. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 26. RHAIEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —NEF
RMB’'000 RMB"000
ARET AREET T

Secured bank loans repayable AR —FRNEENGEMIRT
within one year B% (b) 97,500 98,000

Unsecured loans repayable AR—FRNEENEERER
within one year 32,640 16,200
130,140 114,200
(@) At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loans were (@) MNZEZEFR-_FT—NF+=

(b)

denominated in Renminbi and bore interest rates
ranging from 4.35% to 5.22% per annum.

At 31 December 2020, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of the Group’s
buildings with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB3,575,000 (2019: RMB6,096,000), leasehold
lands of right-of-use assets and the land of
investment properties with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB4,194,000 (2019: right-of-
use assets of RMB26,223,000) and approximately
RMB31,189,000 (2019: Nil) respectively. In addition,
the bank loans were secured by guarantees
provided by an independent third party, a director of
the Company and his son.
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(b)

A=+—8" Efﬁiﬁu/\ﬁﬁ%.ﬁ
B WiZEEBE BT FL435%F
5.22%H) B RS -

R-E-EF+=-_A=+—8"
AEEDREEBERAMEOHAR
#3,575,000c(ZE—NF : A
R #6,096,0007T) 2 F - BR @
E#H AR®A4194,0000( = Z
—NEF:  FTRAEEEARY
26,233,0000T ) & 49 A R ¥
31,189,0007T( —ZE—hF : #)
WEREEEPHAE TR
BEYERNTHIIEARAERAFIR
HIRTTEROER LI BE
RITERBR—BBILE=F —
HZARNBEERER FIRHEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE _—E_-FF+_-_H=+—HIF)ZF

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEGERE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZZE-Z2F RIT—NF
+=A +—A
=t+—H =+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TFR ARBTET

Lease liabilities payable: EfEEEE:
Within one year —F R 131 604
Within a period of more than one year —% Z /M & 7 HIf K

but not more than two years 116 207
Within a period of more than two MEERFZHREA

years but not more than five years 95 343

342 1,154

Less: Amount due for settlement B AR RB B EE AR

within 12 months shown under 12BN 2 FRIB

current liabilities (131) (604)
Amount due for settlement FIRRIERBEBEETEAR

after 12 months shown under 12{81#& &1 2 8

non-current liabilities 211 550
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate MEEE 1$1§ﬁH27JD$’§é$i’]Li‘fa =
applied to lease liabilities is 4.59% (2019: 4.95%). MERL59%(ZF—NF :4.95%)°

BigRE —Z-RFFHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

28. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT 28. AR ERE

CONSIDERATION

In connection with the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how as explained in note 18, provision for
contingent consideration as at 31 December 2015
represented the acquisition-date fair value of contingent
consideration of i) a maximum of approximately
RMB1,289,409,836 in cash (“Cash Consideration”); and
ii) the contingent convertible notes (“Contingent CNs"”)
with principal amount of HK$73,920,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB60,590,164), which will be issued
by the Company after fulfilment of certain conditions
specified in the acquisition agreement signed on 14
October 2015 (”Acquisition Agreement”), as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of the Technology
Know-how.

The settlement of Cash Consideration and the
Contingent CNs is subject to the following conditions:

“Second Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
registration of the transfer of the PRC Patents and
the US Patent having been completed in the State
Intellectual Property Office of the PRC and the United
States Patent and Trademark Office respectively, such that
the Company having become the applicant of the PRC
Patents (or if the PRC Patents are granted, the Company
having become the PRC Patents owner) under the record
of the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC, and
the Company having become the US Patent owner under
the record of the United States Patent and Trademark
Office; and (b) the training provided by Bluestone
to the technicians of the Group and its contracted
parties having been completed, such that the Group
and its contracted parties having been able to produce
graphene-based EVA foam material and graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips based on the Technology
Know-how independently, and the graphene-based EVA
foam material and graphene deodorizing and sterilizing
chips produced having been certified by an independent
technical organisation at provincial level or above to
meet the inspection standard as stipulated under the
Acquisition Agreement.
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B MT FE18FT 1l A B8 U BB B i A0 5k
S R-_E—RF+-_A=1+—HH
SIAREBEBEBE)VFRESREZHDARE
1,289,409,836 C([ HEMRE]) + Ki)
K4 %873,920,0008 L (B E R4 A
R #60,590,1647L) Z KA AT IR
B HATMRBREE ) 2HARER
WEBHZ ATE S BRER
BR-_FE—RAF+ATHBRTZHK
Bipa((WERRDIEENSE TIKG
ERNEBARRET ERWRE R
MEBZEBHRE -

ReRERIATRBRIEZEEAR
AT IR ZERR - T AR ¢

[ ZHRF 5T EEMN R XEE
F B EE 8 B AR 20 Bl A B B 51 R adt
BEEEZEENERAERTRER
A ARR R BEBERANBEER
REEP AR AT EFENE BB AL
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28. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions, the
second instalment in the amount of RMB450,000,000
should be payable by the Company, of which (a)
RMB389,409,836 should be paid in cash within 6
months after fulfilment of the Second Instalment
Conditions; and (b) RMB60,590,164 should be satisfied
by issuing the convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$73,920,000 to Bluestone or its nominee(s) within
15 business days after the fulfilment of the Second
Instalment Conditions.

“Third Instalment Conditions” refer to (a) the
accumulated turnover of a special purpose vehicle
("SPV") to be established by the Group for the sales
of graphene-based EVA foam material, graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips and graphene-based
wearable devices manufactured using the Technology
Know-how and/or any other companies (other than
companies of the Group) authorised to use the
Technology Know-how having reached RMB40,000,000;
and (b) the sales volume of graphene-based EVA foam
material having reached 20,000 cubic meters, each within
9 months after the Completion Date (or such later date
as the Company may agree).

Upon fulfilment of the Second Instalment Conditions
and the Third Instalment Conditions, the third instalment
in the amount of RMB270,000,000 should be payable
by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its nominee(s)
within 15 business days after the fulfilment of the Third
Instalment Conditions.

Second Instalment Conditions and Third Instalment
Conditions had been fulfilled and the Company had paid
RMB389,409,836 by way of cash and RMB60,590,164
by way of issuing the convertible notes and
RMB270,000,000 by way of cash on 2 February 2016 and
8 September 2016 respectively.

28. AN ER B

RE G ERE  FEHeBEA
R #450,000,0007T 78 & $ Al X
- E d(a) A K #389,409,8367T 78
R E ZHE R 1261 A WWE&
S R(b)AR#60,590,1647L78
F R EKBISREE AR WiﬁL
MEASERZABRBITASEA
73,920,000 7T &) A] #2 % & i 2
5f o

[ 58 = HRiE 1 | #5 A e Ak B A2 91@ A
R AR FREOEEBH)@AE
ERpESFEREMMEREEN AR
BEVAZS B K ARBEHREZE D
FRARGAFEE B MK
B®RRI([SPV]) &SR A
BT EmEdRs(ReER
SESNE)) BT E XD EARE
40,000,0007T : K (b)f 2= HEVAZE B
MEHEE D E20,00037 5 K o

Eﬁ%’ HA M5 R 38 = BRI AR AR
= i%ﬁ/\ﬁﬂg270 000,0007T 78

EE$ R = BRI ERRI5EE

%H Wuiﬁiﬁiﬁ%mEj@Hﬁm%}\

“HIGHEREZSRIEHEER A
NEIDPIR—ZE—NF_A-HIURE
éiiﬁ)\ﬁmw 409,836 T M i i3

TAABRBEEINTARK
60,590,1647E)§iﬁ’$f —~NEALAN
AR & AR 270,000,0007T °
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28. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT 28. HRKERB &)
CONSIDERATION (continued)
Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, upon fulfilment BIEWERSE BF_HKGERE=

of the Second Instalment Conditions and the Third
Instalment Conditions, Bluestone is entitled to share 35%
of the earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA") of the SPV for the 6-month
period ended 30 June or 31 December of each year
("Interim Financial Period”) starting from the year the
Second Instalment Conditions and the Third Instalment
Conditions are fulfilled and each subsequent Interim
Financial Period (until the end of the sixth financial year
ending 31 December from the Completion Date), subject
to a maximum sharing amount of RMB630,000,000 (the
“EBITDA Sharing Mechanism”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the financial year in which
the Completion Date ending on would be considered
as the first financial year for the purpose of the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism. During the period under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism, for each Interim Financial Period, the
Company should appoint an independent auditor to issue
a certificate for the EBITDA of the SPV during the relevant
Interim Financial Period within 4 months from the end
of such Interim Financial Period, and the sharing amount
shall be paid by the Company in cash to Bluestone or its
nominee(s) within 15 business days after the issuance
of such certificate. Any license fees for the Technology
Know-how payable by the SPV to the Group will be
disregarded in the calculation of the EBITDA.

If the accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the period
under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism is less than
RMB1,800,000,000 (for the purpose, if the SPV records a
loss in any Interim Financial Period, the EBITDA of the SPV
of that Interim Financial Period would be regarded as zero
in calculating the accumulated EBITDA), the total sharing
amount under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism will be less
than RMB630,000,000 and the Company is not obligated
to pay the shortfall between RMB630,000,000 and 35%
of the actual accumulated EBITDA of the SPV during the
period under the EBITDA Sharing Mechanism.

Provision for contingent consideration as at 31 December
2019 represented the contingent cash consideration
payable to Bluestone or its nominee(s) under the EBITDA
Sharing Mechanism.
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28. PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT

CONSIDERATION (continued)

. AR ER B )

The movements of the provision for contingent AR BEE 2 80T -
consideration were as follows:
2020 2019
—E2CE2H —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
As at the beginning of the year G - 4,769
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss  FRRIETAZ AFE
during the year Wz - (4,769)
As at the end of the year RER - -

The fair value of the provision for contingent
consideration was calculated using the discounted cash
flow approach. The discount rate used in the approach
was ranging from 14.84% - 14.86%.

The provision for contingent consideration is classified
as a financial liability which will then be measured at fair
value and any changes in fair value will be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The directors of the Company conducted a fair value
assessment of the provision for contingent consideration
as at 31 December 2019, with reference to a valuation
conducted by Ascent Partners.

HARBEENLATERAMIBES
mESHE - R—_ZE—hLE+ = A
=+ —H AREBEHRFER
FBEIRIR € MARTE « A ALIR X
FRAEHEAE14.84% - 14.86% °

LARBRERDBEASMEAR
AT EH B 2 D
BREBARBRNER

$@ET%$E%%SZ%HHHZ%@%
—NE+ZA=+—-BZHARK
{Eﬁé‘ﬁ TR ERFS -
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax ERTEERERAGBD T BB
asset and liability have been offset. The following is EREZIELERIBER DI E 5 w0
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial T

reporting purposes:

29. EEFHIEEE
RENGAMBRRENS  ETE

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETIT

Deferred tax asset RIEFRIEEE 1,173 514
Deferred tax liability RIEFRIERE (6,589) (3,071)
(5,416) (2,557)

The following are the major deferred tax liability and
asset recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

UTRENMMBEFEHRHCHERLZ
ITBRERBABREEALE

Allowance Undistributed Fair value gain
for inventories profits of PRC on investment
and credit losses subsidiary properties Total
HEKEAT RENFE 2
FERGEFRRRE 2R R N EYE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
(note a)
(Hiita)
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NF—A—H 580 (3,071) - (2,491)
Credited to profit or loss HABH (66) - - (66)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 R=Z— 115
January 2020 +-A=f+-H
R-Z-%F
—-A—-A 514 (3,071) - (2,557)
Charged to profitor loss ~ REZHK 659 - (3,518) (2,859)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZF
+-A=+-8 1,173 (3,071) (3,518) (5,416)
Note: st -
(@) The amount represents Group’'s withholding taxes to @ ZE2EENR_Z_ZTERKR-ZF

the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounted
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

—hE+=ZA=+—H Fx&E
BN E AR EMREARE
62,075,000 H) TEHNER ©
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. ®A&
The details of the authorised and issued share capital of ARBEEREBITIRA Z2FIEW
the Company are as follows: T
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hnF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AR®EFTT
Authorised: ETE ¢
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,0000% & I HI{E
US$0.01 each 0.01ZETTHE B 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE -
1,486,859,608 (2019: 1,486,859,608) 1,486,859,6080%
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each (ZF—NF
1,486,859,6080% ) &%
E{E0.01E T E AR 99,310 99,310
Ordinary shares BEER

Number of ordinary

shares of US$0.01 Nominal value of Nominal value of
each ordinary shares ordinary shares
BREE0.01
ETNERR
88 LEREE LRREE
US§'000 RMB'000
TEL ARETR
Authorised: RE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RN_E-N1E5-A-H"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 “E-NE+ZA=t-H
“E2-TE-A-AR
TECEE+-A=1-H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR :
At 1 January 2019 R-F-n&-F—-8 1,304,059,608 13,041 86,758
Completion of subscription of new Shares SRR 182,800,000 1828 12,552
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 R-E-NE+-A=1-H
and 31 December 2020 “E-RE-A-BR
“ECRE+-A=1-H 1,486,859,608 14,869 99,310
BigR —T-TEFR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31.

Ordinary shares (continued)

Pursuant to the Company's announcements dated 9
November 2018, 12 November 2018 and 8 March
2019 and 29 May 2019, two independent subscribers
subscribed for a total of 182,800,000 new Shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.27 per subscription
share which were completed on 8 March 2019 (the
“2018 Subscription”). The net proceeds from the 2018
Subscription (after deducting the relevant expenses
incurred in the 2018 Subscription) were approximately
HK$49,136,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB42,982,000).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include, among others, the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
employees, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
consultants of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 28 January 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date, i.e. 27 January 2021, after which period no further
options will be offered or granted but the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects with regard to the share
options granted during the life of the Share Option
Scheme. The Share Option Scheme has been refreshed on
10 June 2019 in the Annual General meeting (“Refreshed
Share Option Scheme”).
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Subject to the Listing Rules, the overall limit on the
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the relevant class of Shares in issue from
time to time. Subject to the limit above, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all option to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) and at the
date of approval by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit
is refreshed. The maximum number of Shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue and or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and which
shall not exceed 10 years after the date on which the
share options are granted and accepted. The exercise of
any option may be subject to a vesting schedule to be
determined by the board of directors.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31. R AEBNSRZRS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The Share Option Scheme does not specify a minimum
period for which a share option must be held before it
can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

(&)

AT UAREEE 2 BIRET S
(&)

FERCERT B B IS E — IR BUEETT
ERIBRENREHIR -

BREZITEERAARARESFEE
HEASERATZ2ESE : (RO
BRERD B MEB 2 KWHE
(BN EZEZEN R AER S A
R AT P E ¢ i
E1E °

FERCEY A TR A AMEUR B 3
BRARGIREZHER

FA - RBEEREST IS RITENE
PeEMT -

2020 2019
—ECBE —T-NF

Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price share options  exercise price  share options
ik B! BRE Mg B
TEE B @ &8

HK$ HKS

B BT
At 1 January n—H—H 0.65 241,180,000 0.65 241,180,000
Granted during the year FERF 0.55 111,000,000 - -
Forfeited during the year FRR U 0.81  (38,580,000) - -
At 31 December R+-—A=1+—H 0.59 313,600,000 0.65 241,180,000

111,000,000 share options were granted (2019: Nil) and
38,580,000 (2019: Nil) share options were forfeited due
to expiry of the share options during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2020
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 45,660,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

- 31,600,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,900,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.

- 1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

- 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2017 with an exercise period from 16
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

2,375,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2018 with an exercise period from 16
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2019 with an exercise period from 16
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2020 with an exercise period from 16
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

64,980,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

43,320,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.

66,600,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2020 with an exercise period from 22
October 2020 to 21 October 2025.

44,400,000 of such share options will be vested on
22 October 2021 with an exercise period from 22
October 2021 to 21 October 2025.

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2020

(%)

ARG BERONRZRS

AT UAREEE 2 BIRET S

(#)

2 E B ERY2,375,0001 B 7
—E-N\F+ZAT+BRE"
TEBEE-E—N\F+A+
BE-Z-_—F+=-H+THhH-

% 5 B AR #E §91,900,0001 B R
T-NE+_A+ARE"
RE-—T-—#+_-A+AA-

ZEBEAYHEAY1,900,00010 B A
—E-FTF+-R+BHEE"
TEHE-ZE-_FF+ A+
HEe-_Z-_—4%+_-_A+HB-

M#ﬁﬁﬂx%sﬁm 980,000 2
—N\FERATNERE 17

fiﬁﬂz%_? NFERATNEE

—EC=FRNATNR

uxﬁaﬁﬂXT&:E}]43 320,000/ B A
—T-NERNATILERE 17
ﬁﬁﬁi%:i% AEXATHLAZE
—T-=FXA+N\HBHe

Z S B IER66,600,00017 Efﬁ/:\
—E-EF+ A+ -HR

ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%—%—%iJrﬂ—wL—
HE-_Z-_RF&+HA-+—H-

ZERERRER44,400,000170 17
—E-—Ft+A-+-HRE"

TEeE—_ S _—F+A-_+=
HE-_Z-_AF+HA-+—H-



31.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘?{

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2019
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 10,917,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2015 with an exercise period from 10
December 2015 to 9 December 2020.

- 19,356,000 of such share options were vested on
10 December 2016 with an exercise period from 10
December 2016 to 9 December 2020.

— 3,195,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2017 with an exercise period from 10
December 2017 to 9 December 2020.

- 2,556,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2018 with an exercise period from 10
December 2018 to 9 December 2020.

- 2,556,000 of such share options were vested on 10
December 2019 with an exercise period from 10
December 2019 to 9 December 2020.

- 45,660,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

- 31,600,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,900,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31. R AEBNSRZRS

(continued) (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the RATURELEE 2 BIRESTE

Company (continued) (&)

- 1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16 - ZEBEREMI,425,000H0 B R
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16 :Z@—/_\iﬂ— A+/BHEE"
December 2016 to 15 December 2021. IEMR-_ZT—RE+A+

H f\fgi—i-f-:ﬂ +HH-

— 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16 - ZEBRERT,900,00010 B
December 2017 with an exercise period from 16 —E—+F+ A+ BHREE"
December 2017 to 15 December 2021. TERHAE-_ZE—+FE+ A+~

BE-_Z-—%F+=-A+HH-

- 2,375,000 of such share options were vested on 16 - ZEBERER2,3750000E R
December 2018 with an exercise period from 16 —2-N\F+A+BEBE"
December 2018 to 15 December 2021. TEHAE—ZT—N\E+-A+x

RE_Z_—F+_H+hAH-

— 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16 —  ZEERER1,900,00015 B A
December 2019 with an exercise period from 16 —E-NEF+ZAR+BEB
December 2019 to 15 December 2021. TEHAEZZE—NF+_A+X

BE_T_—%+_-_HA+HAB-

— 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16 —  ZEEERRREARY1,900,0001 2R
December 2020 with an exercise period from 16 —EEF+ A+ HEE
December 2020 to 15 December 2021. TERA—ZE_ZF+ - A+<

RE-F—_—F+_-A+hAA-

- 64,980,000 of such share options were vested on — M#%HX%E’]M 980,00017 E 1A
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June —E-N\FERATNERE 17
2018 to 18 June 2023. FEHAEA-Z—N\FAT+NLEZE

—E=FA+tNH-

— 43,320,000 of such share options were vested on — %Z%%HQ%E’]B 320,000 E R
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June —NWEXRATILHEHEE 17
2019 to 18 June 2023. ﬁﬂﬁﬁ;f NERATHAZE

—= = Eﬁ/\ﬂ—'—[\ao
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

31. MR RAERNNTRZRS
(%)
AARUREEE 2 BB
(%)
2K AT BT 62
ERATEEMT -

are as follows:

2020

—g-%%

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BRERR THEESRBT 1T 5

111,000,000 0.55 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025
—ECEFE+AZ+=-HEZE-RE+A=+—H

108,300,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023
—E-NEXNATHIBEE=ZZE==ZFXA+N\H

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E-RE+ZAt+RBE=ZE=-—F+=-HATHH

84,800,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021

—RNERNAZt+HNBE=E=-—FXA=1+=H

2019

ZE-NF

Number of Exercise price

share options HKS$ per share Exercise period

BREREA THEESRET T

108,300,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023

/\/EE/\H ‘f’j'L Hz—% __EE/\H ‘f’/\ H

9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E—RNFt+ZAt+RNEHEZZ-_—4F+=-A+HH

84,800,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
—E-RNFERNAZtTWNBE-_ZE 4% XXAZ+=H

38,580,000 0.81 10 December 2015 to 9 December 2020

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$24,872,000

(equivalent to RMB20,837,000).

—hEt+-ATHE-Z-_FTE+_ANA

Hz—_Z—A%+=-_A=+—H
TFEERENBEREATES
24,872,000 L (HHER AR
20,837,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31. R AEBNSRZRS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 June
2016 and 16 December 2016 was HK$18,960,000
(equivalent to RMB16,204,000) and HK$3,924,000
(equivalent to RMB3,510,000) respectively.

The fair value of the share options granted on
19 June 2018 was HK$17,289,000 (equivalent to
RMB14,576,000).

The fair value of the share options granted on 22
October 2020 was HK$25,183,000 (equivalent to
RMB21,627,000).

The Group recognised total share based payment of
RMB15,889,000 for the year (2019: RMB5,299,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

The fair value was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

(#&)

ARAT AR ELEE 2 BIRESTE
(&)
RZE—RFANAZ+THOBERE-Z
—NFE+ZA+NBRENERED
FED R A18,960,0008 7T (FHE R A
K #16,204,0007T ) %3,924,0007% 7T
(&M ARK3,510,0007T)°

RZZE—N\FXATHLBREHER
RENT{EA17,289,00008 T (FER A
R#14,576,0007T) °

RNR—E-EF+A-+ - HRERE
A% N B A25,183,00058 7T (FEE
AER#21,627,0007T ) °

REBRAFERAD R L AER
ERRARMD BERNMRETAR
#15,889,0007t( —E— L E: AR
#5,299,0007T ) °

DT AE TR A T8 I B AR AR £ R0 15
SR A1 PSR L B BB P T R A
A3 -

TRIVRAT AR B AR -

2020 share options —ETFBERE

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)  fi#EF#HE (FiET) 0.55
Exercise price (HK$ per share) TEE (8RBT 0.55
Expected volatility (%) 8 B 18 (%) 76.41
Expected life of options (year) R ERTEEFE (F) 5
Risk-free rate (% per annum) ERRFE(BF%) 0.228
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 HA A% B 2 3 (%) 0
Exercise multiple — employee TEEH—EE 2.20
Exercise multiple — consultant T8 — R 2.20

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
5 years. The expected life and exercise multiple used in
the model have been adjusted, based on management'’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—FL_FF+-H=+—HILFZE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 38,580,000
(2019: Nil) of cancelled share options with fair value
of approximately RMB13,239,000 (2019: Nil) which
previously recognised in share options reserve had been
transferred to retained profits.

As at 31 December 2020, 148,685,960 Shares may be
issued upon the exercise of all the share options to be
granted under the Refreshed Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 10% of the total issued
Shares as at 31 December 2020 and the date of this
annual report. As at 31 December 2020, the Company
had 313,600,000 (2019: 241,180,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 21.09% (2019: 16.22%)
of the Shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 313,600,000 (2019: 241,180,000) additional
Shares and additional share capital and share premium
of approximately HK$24,312,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,462,000) (2019: HK$18,783,000 and equivalent
to RMB16,825,000) and approximately HK$161,441,000
(equivalent to RMB135,875,000) (2019: HK$137,170,000
equivalent to RMB122,874,000), before issue expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior reporting periods are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

()

Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the Company
and its shareholders had entered into certain
conditional release and discharge agreements,
pursuant to which, the new exchangeable note
would be duly released and discharged, which had
taken place on the Listing Date, 28 January 2011,
and prior to the commencement of the trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange. Accordingly,
the liability component of the new exchangeable
note of RMB57,768,000 on the Listing Date was
extinguished and transferred to the contributed
surplus in shareholders’ equity upon the full
conversion of the new exchangeable note.

Pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Best Mark and the Subscriber on 21
June 2012, Best Mark lent 32,000,000 Shares to
the Subscriber. Upon initial recognition, the value
of such contribution amounting to approximately
RMB12,183,000 from the substantial shareholder
was accounted for as a deemed contribution in the
shareholder’s equity. The carrying amount of such
contribution from the substantial shareholder is not
remeasured in subsequent years.

On 10 September 2012, Best Mark and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the
“Call and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to
which the Subscriber had granted to Best Mark the
right to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at a
strike price of HK$1.01 and Best Mark has granted
the Subscriber the right to require Best Mark to
purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at the same
strike price.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was informed
by Best Mark that 32,000,000 Shares had been
transferred by the Subscriber to Best Mark and
the transaction set out in the Call and Put Option
Confirmation was terminated.
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32. RESERVES (continued) 32. #FE &)

(ii) Statutory surplus fund (i) ZEBRHBLAED
In accordance with the relevant regulations BIEPRMEEERRG NEE
applicable in the PRC, the Group’'s subsidiary EFRBIKZ B RRIZERETE

established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior period’s losses), if
any, to the statutory surplus fund until the balance
of the fund reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund
may be used to offset against accumulated losses

FERK mémﬁKEﬁ%Eﬂﬂ
THEER) WE)NETED
LhEEEATFRBAEES 'R
PECHEBHREIEFMER
50% A& 1E AE BB AES ] H
EREFEMNBRAMN RS
B HASTHREFEERNS

THR - TR S RBALTHH

of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is MEBARMESSIE -
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiary.
(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve (iii) ERREFHE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all I:R/Ezéjj{;ﬁf% BIEME R ERIN

foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations

BB ISR PTE LB —ISNE
ZR - DRBERA MWK E

outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance 3FME R ARRIE
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
33. COMMITMENTS 33. &g
The Group had the following commitments at the end of REBR LI/EFRAG DA TAIE
the reporting period:
2020 2019
—BEF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Contracted for capital commitment in EBERHWBARIRERNGTL
respect of investment in subsidiaries B AR IE 169,970 169,970
Contracted for commitments in respect of: HRILA I8 B 85T 40K IE -
— advertising and consultancy services — BE KRS 329 249
— research and development contract —REEH 300 300
— property, plant and equipment — W B KRR 3,060 3,117
— purchase of materials —EEME 303 -
- services — R% 167 -
4,159 3,666
Bk —T-TFFR
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34. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGMENTS 34, KEHERH
The Group as lessor KATRMEREHEA
All of the properties held by the Group for rental REBABRDBEEMBEN N WE
purposes have committed lessees for the next 5 years ERKRAEF(ZZE—NEFE: ZF)EH
(2019: 3 years). RTHIAEREA ©
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as MEZARBBREKASHRAOT -
follows:
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—E-EF —E-NF
+=—B=+—-8 +ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

Within one year % 3,288 380
In the second year E_F 1,762 197
In the third year FE=F 1,614 237
In the fourth year FIHEF 1,575 -
In the fifth year FRF 1,575 -

9,814 814
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35, R EEfiEL BB HER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities THRAMAEERETHAEECZE
arising from financing activities, including both cash B2 ARESMIFRCETH R
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEBfEEZBERBEEREGRN
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future UARBREREBENRAEEBLEAE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated ERERNDEEMEEHMEEZ
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing ReEnENZEEE
activities.
Short term Lease
Bills payables horrowings liabilities Total
S BOEE HEER Eh)
RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZ-NE-R-B (&) - 123,100 1,21 124,311
Drawdown of new short term ROFEHEE
borrowings - 114,200 - 114,200
Repayments of short term borrowings  EB B E - (123,100) - (123,100)
Repayments of principal of lease ERfEaRAS
liabilities - - (514) (514)
Drawdown of bills payables ROEREE 12,850 - - 12,850
Interest paid BRI E (1) (5,890) ) (6,072)
Interest expenses fgRx il 5,890 71 6,072
New leases entered HiRE - - 457 457
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+-A=t-REK
1 January 2020 “ECEF-A-H 12,850 114,200 1,154 128,204
Addition .yl - 148,140 - 148,140
Repayment of short term borrowings ~ EEEEIEE - (132,200 - (132,200
Repayment of bills payables ERERRE (12,850) - - (12,850)
Repayment of principal of lease [EEHERELS
liabilities - - (602) (602)
Drawdown of bills payables ROERES 12,600 - - 12,600
Interest paid BRAE - (5,869) (44) (5912)
Interest expenses fERx - 5,868 4 5912
New leases entered iRE - - 345 345
Gain on termination of lease BIFRERE - - (555) (555)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZE+-A=1t-H 12,600 130,140 342 143,082
B —ZT-TEER
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36.

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the significant related party
transactions are disclosed as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

36. BEAXTRS

Brira M mR LM E D g
E?&F’% PR ZIWBEMT

AEBTZEREABNMESINT -

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBETT AREFITT
Other emoluments: HibEg -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %‘f/i\ EELREYRER 2,477 602

Contributions to retirement benefits RGBT
schemes 8 8
2,485 610

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 26) net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. BERIEITHERMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RZE—_EFR_F—NF+A
financial instruments as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 —t+t—HBENSELRIAREAN
are as follows: T
Financial assets SREE
2020 2019
—ECEF —hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
At amortised cost: B
Trade receivables (note 20) fHﬂlﬂé%ﬁE R(FaE20) 44,454 44,784
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEEMNZIE He REM
deposits and other receivables FEWIEN & BB E 8,054 32,619
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 3,780 3,855
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1THE 625 4,101
56,913 85,359
Financial liabilities SRaE
2020 2019
- —§$ :%E_j-tﬁ
Financial Financial
Financial liabilities at Financial liabilities at
liabilities at ~ amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
BAYE I8 8 fﬁ?’&$f§ \L\M‘*ﬁﬁﬁ
E‘f{\iﬁ%‘ﬁ ﬁiﬁ"ri SABE EAE
WemaRE MENaE BE NEEEE NEBAR ks
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TR ARETR AREFT ARETRT ARETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities: K742 BBLE
Trade and bills payables (note 24)  FEIIE BT R BT
SB(WH24) - 65,705 65,705 - 56,856 56,856
Financial liabilities included in BEEE RS Hih
deposits received, other payables  fEfFIE R EER
and accruals MeRaE - 38,926 38,926 - 35,053 35,053
Lease liabilities (note 27) RERE(HH27) - 342 342 - 1,154 1,154
Short term borrowings (note 26) R EREE (A17#26) - 130,140 130,140 - 114,200 114,200
- 235,113 235,113 - 207,263 207,263
B —T_TEERHR
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39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 39. ST AEMNAFEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and AEBRBELSEMEERATE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value ENeREERSREBENATE
on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial REZWMER AEENETERE
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each ErcRBERATEFE - TRE
reporting period. The following table gives information JzEemEEREMBEATEE
about how the fair values of these financial assets and EANLEEZAMNMERERE
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the ANEBE)REHBE R

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Significant
Fair value as at Fair value unohservable Valuation technique(s)
Financial liabilities 31 December 2020 hierarchy inputs Range and key input(s)
33
tTZA=t-H EXFUER HERERTE
tRAR MATE NYEZR BAE 86E BAE
Provision for Liabilities, Level 3 Discount rate Nil Discounted Cash Flow
contingent RMB Nil (2019: 14.84%-14.86%) Approach
consideration The key inputs are set out in
(note 28)
FRRERR 8 E=5 BRZ Nil ERREMA
AREER (ZE-NF:14.84%-14.86% ) IEBAEER
(Miz28)
Fair value hierarchy DAEEZER
Level 3
E=H
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Financial liabilities cREE
— Provision for contingent consideration ~ — s A R(B B4 - -
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39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

39. R T AN A FEFEE)

E=ZRLAFEITEWHER

Provision for

contingent

consideration

RARERE

RMB'000

AREF T

(note 28)

(Ktat28)

e -
7 PRMAZERT AR 2T I 2

As at 1 January 2019
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss
during the year

4,769

(4,769)

As at 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020
and 31 December 2020

R—EB—h&F+=-_A=+—H"
—ECEF-—A—BRZZE_FTF
+-R=+—8H -

40.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost recorded in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments, include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits, cash
and bank balances, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and short term
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

40.

BRRAOTFEUINIRZAEBEH
EEREREBEZATE
ARAREERR NEAMBHRRIZ
BERNIENEREENERAR
MAREEEE QFERS -

BHEREEBFERBE

AEENFESRTADERKES
R BEEANTIE R hEA
BURFEANEREE BERFR
Re RRITES BNEZRARE
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E BN S M ERE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BB EREEBERBER(#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk ShEE LB
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such rEEERSEBRAR  T2REN
exposures arise from sales transactions and financing Erx(Erx)) RBET(ETDFHESN
denominated in US dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong HERX S MEEEE -

dollars ("HK$").

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TERETVRZMER  WAEHME
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible EREFETNE  NEERWATEEYLY X
change in the US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other TR ABTUIE R G IR A se B A GUR
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax. 15 o

Increase/

(decrease) in
Increase/  the Group's

(decrease) in loss before
US$/HKS$ rate tax
AEBEBRB
En/BrER BIBERLA
A (FER) (T%)
% RMB'000
ARETFTT
2020 —z-—Tx
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETEAREAE 5 (2,214)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT H AREHE 5 (19)
If US$ weakens against RMB WETLAREERE (5) 2,214
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARERE (5) 19
2019 —B-hEF
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHEAREHE 5 (2,129)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WA T AREHE 5 (14)
If US$ weakens against RMB WMETHARERE (5) 2,129
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT HARKERE (5) 14
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency 7N B3R R 0 AR SNEE R IGR - BE
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign BEERINERR TERNETEER
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant ZE¥EIPERINE R o

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade receivables
which are assessed individually with a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

For financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, the Group makes individual assessment
based on industrial factors, historical observed default
rates and adjusts for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. No impairment
was recognised by the Group on financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables during the
current year.

The Group’s credit risk on bank balances and cash is low
and there is no significant concentration of credit risk
because all bank deposits are deposited in or contracted
with several state-owned banks with good reputation and
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. No recognition of ECL on bank balances,
restricted bank balances and cash is considered necessary.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the US (2019: US), which accounted
for 99% (2019: 91%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2020.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 89%
(2019: 48%) and 99% (2019: 97%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

40. BB ERBREEEERBKRE)

=& R KR E R
R-ZFE-_TFE+-_A=+—H &%
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

40. IBEREEEERBE &)

EE R NRER L (F)
TNREJIERBEBE AR EWE
SRR 2 PRREERR 2 Z2H -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total

2 A fE A >

FEEFE FEFE
(EEERE) (EERHE) et
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARET T ARET T
1 January 2019 —E-hE—-H—H 128 8,246 8,374
— Transfer to credit-impaired —ERZEERE (43) 43 -
— Impairment losses recognised — & ERBEE B 38 44 82
— Impairment losses reversed — R EEERE (85) (518) (603)
- Exchange adjustments —[ERFE - 133 133

At 31 December 2019 and R-ZZB-—NF
1 January 2020 +=ZA=+—HR
—E-EF—-A—H 38 7,948 7,986
— Transfer to credit-impaired —HEREEERE (38) 38 -
— Impairment losses recognised — 2 ¥R REE B 609 36 645
— Impairment losses reversed — REE 8 # (o) - (118) (118)
— Write-off —HER - (6,834) (6,834)
— Exchange adjustments — [ERFHEK - (500) (500)
At 31 December 2020 N-_E_EHF

+=—HA=+—H 609 570 1,179
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the trade receivables are over one year past due,
whichever occurs earlier.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market

interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short term
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The short term borrowings, cash and short
term deposits are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income
and expenses are credited/charged to the statement of
profit or loss as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s net loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

40. BB ERBREEEERBKRE)

EE R RORE R ()
WAEEMBRNESARREENTR
B B g [ 3R IR B # R AR (A fE A
BRRIEAWERF REWES
FEARCAHEE—F UREER
) REERMERKE B RN

R 2R @ B
AEBEHE BN SH AR ER
EAREERY BB EEERR -

REBTFTHEERE T BEENE
BEMXEAR - SHEE RELE
HATE R B SRR A A BR M A& E 3
Ef - FRBRARTHRIBEERAIE
ERECELETAER K-

TRETMAA LS ERETE .
S B B A R (BT B B
W) SR 2 45 A B8 D ) B
P o

Increase in

Increase in loss before

interest rate tax

RR B AT

FI 2= 38 N B

RMB’000

AREFTT

2020 —E-EHF 1% 1,301
2019 —T-nF 1% 1,142
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BIKEREEBEERBE &)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings, internal resources
and external facilities provided by an independent
third party as significant sources of liquidity. As at 31
December 2020, the Group has fully utilised the short-
term bank loan facilities (2019: fully utilised short-term
bank loan facilities).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

HEEBREEEREREERE)

RBESERE(E)

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the 2B WAERRZE A
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve E'Jﬂiﬂﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂ?—ﬁ@u o

at the end of the reporting period.

2020
More than More than
Less than 12 1 year but 2 years but
months less than less than  Undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
R
tZfiR BE-f ifchmtcs RER
ARERR BAR=E EHREE ReRE REfE
RMB‘000 RMB000 RMB‘000 RMB000 RMB'000
AR®TR AERTR AR®TR AERTR AEBTR
Non-derivative financial liabilties: HTEERAR:
Trade and bills payables (note 24) EREZERRERSE
(Hrit4) 65,705 - - 65,705 65,705
Financial liabiliies included in deposits  B4%EDE4 - Kt ERFER
received other payables and accruals — EHERNSRAR 38,926 - - 38,926 38,926
Lease liabilities e 143 124 97 364 m
Short term borrowings RBfEE 133,122 - - 133,122 130,140
238,496 124 97 238,717 235,113
2019
—F2-A%F
More than More than
Less than 12 1 year but 2 years but
months less than lessthan ~ Undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
TZfiR if o i S AER
FREKE BHR_% BHIREE REng BEfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT AR¥TT ARETT ARETT
Non-derivative financial liabilities: HTELRAR:
Trade and bills payables (note 24 EfEHENRENRE
(Hiit24) 56,856 - - 56,856 56,856
Financial liabilities included in deposits ~ B&ER YRS Kt AR
received other payables and accruals EAERNLREE 35,053 - - 35,053 35,053
Lease liabilities HEEE 648 230 358 1,236 1,154
Short term borrowings RS 116,706 - - 116,706 114,200
209,263 230 358 209,851 207,263
B —T-TEERH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of
the Group’s products include rubber and plastics. The
Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these
raw materials which are influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in
the prices of raw materials could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. The Group historically has
not entered into any commodity derivative instruments to
hedge the potential commodity price changes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year of 2020, a supplier had filed lawsuit
against the overdue payment of Quanzhou Baofeng
Shoes Co., Ltd. (“Quanzhou Baofeng”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with total
amount of approximately RMBO0.5 million (the “Amount
in Question”) and the first trial held that Quanzhou
Baofeng shall repay the Amount in Question plus interest.

Based on the best estimation of the management of
the Company, Quanzhou Baofeng has valid ground in
opposing the Amount in Question in the judgement
of the above said case. As the lawsuit is in the process
of appeal, the corresponding legal fee and interest are
uncertain. Accordingly, no provision has been made in
the consolidated financial statement.

Except as described above, there was no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

43.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29
January 2021, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company had entered into a contract for acquisition of
Casting Silicon Furnaces with an independent third party
for RMB37,460,000 (value added tax inclusive) on 29
January 2021. The consideration shall be satisfied in cash.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
24 March 2021, the Company entered into the 2021
Subscription Agreement with an independent third party,
in relation to the subscription for 20,000,000 new Shares
at HK$4 per share and the Placing Agreement with a
placing agent on 24 March 2021, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to place through the placing agent,
on a best effort basis, up to 100,000,000 new Shares at
HK$4 per share.

On 26 March 2021, a share subscription deposit in
the sum of HK$80,000,000 had been received by the
Company. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the 2021 Subscription and Placing are expected to be
completed in April 2021.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures has been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

42.

43.

REHREE

AAANRBHAE T - —F—A
“HNABHZAE ARR—REESR
EfBARIR-_E-_—F—A=+N
H#L LA A R #37,460,0007T W BE 56T
EE - BT E =V AL - RE
LIRS+ o

MARBBBMA-_ZT-_—F=A
“HWOHZAE  KRABR T —
FZA-t+MNBEE—FBBHIE=FF]
VIEZ—FREWE NREBIL
f%47 7T 52 8520,000,0000% # I&
M RE—FEERETLREH
FB ARFREREBBREER
BUSBRBRMB TR IRERS
100,000,000 A% 17 ©
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, KD T 2 BRI &

THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B e+ ARBTTT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Intangible assets mEEE - 61,000
Interest in subsidiaries R B R B R HE S 40,057 912,570
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 248
40,076 973,818
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFUE - B & KEMIE
receivables W skag 295 310
Cash and bank balances I8 MIRTTE 190 69
485 379
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Deposits received, other payables and 2 Wiz 4 - b fESS
accruals FIENETER 1,885 1,965
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A FIF0E 1,112,580 1,112,580
Lease liabilities HEAE 20 233
1,114,485 1,114,778
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (1,114,000) (1,114,399)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBERE
LIABILITIES (1,073,924) (140,581)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE - 20
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (1,073,924) (140,601)
EQUITY s
Share capital R 99,310 99,310
Reserves 1 i (1,173,234) (239,911)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B AE 4t (1,073,924) (140,601)

AARIEEFER _T-_—F=A=+
BHERRETZ R TALTR
REE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s
board of directors on 30 March 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

LEUNG Tsz Chung ZHENG Jingdong

R 0=
Director Director
2 E-
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, KD B 2R RET(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note Kt st
i) Reserves of the Company i) ¥iNNETR= A
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RiEE B4z GARRRE  BRERE it ER @it

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 563,815 395,026 524 41,800 (1,044,342) (#3177)

Loss and total comprehensive expense for  FRBER2 AR % £

the year - - - - (232,654) (232,654)
Completion of subscription of new Shares  JEARE AT 30,621 - - - - 30,621
Equity-settled share-based payments RIS S AR AERE

fi5 - - - 5,099 - 5,099
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-nE+ZA=+-A
1 January 2020 KR-5-E%-5-R 594,436 395,026 524 47,099 (1,276,996) (239.911)

Loss and total comprehensive expense £ABER2ERZAE

for the year - - - - (949,212) (949,212)
Equity-settled share-based payments  RRELENRABEBN

DES - - - 15,889 - 15,889

Forfeiture of share options RbERE - - - (13,239) 13,239 -

At 31 December 2020 RZF-BETZA=t-H 594,436 395,026 524 49749 (2212,969)  (1,173,234)

BigRE —Z-RFFHR
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (continued)

i) Going concern of the Company

The directors of the Company are aware of the capital
deficiency in the Statement of Financial Position of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. In assessing
whether the Group will be able to finance its future
working capital and finance, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Company is able to operate as
a going concern by considering the following:

1) The majority of the liabilities of the Company are
amount due from direct or indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries. The Company would consider all
available source of funding included but not limited
to, requiring the subsidiaries to declare dividend.

2)  On 24 March 2021, the Company entered into
2021 Subscription Agreement with an independent
third party, in relation to the subscription for
20,000,000 new Shares at HK$4 per share and
Placing Agreement with a placing agent, pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to place through
the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to
100,000,000 new Shares at HK$4 per share. On
26 March 2021, share subscription deposit in the
sum of HK$80,000,000 had been received. In the
opinion of Director, the 2021 Subscription and
Placing Agreement are expected to be completed in
April 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-F-TF+-_HA=+—HIFZF

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Place of registration/

45. RRAEEMB R ANFE

incorporation and Issued and fully Percentage of equity
Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ER/EMALIE  EROREH
£ mEws BREX RARAEEREADL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# &
BAOF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading of slippers, and
investment holding
EEHEBERLA B 10,000% 1T 100 - BE#E RREEKR
Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co., Ltd.*  PRC RMB544,229,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
("Quanzhou Baofeng”) slippers, sandals and
casual footwear
FMNEBEZERAT i ARE - 100 RERHEERE RER
(TRIMEL]) 544,229,0007C NG
Baofeng Modern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant
BERE (BE)ERAT e 10,0007 7T 100 - EEE%
Astute Sino Developments Limited ~ BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
EZERERAA RBRAHS 100%7T 100 - EEEXx
2D Material Technology Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Investment holding and
Company Limited trading of Graphene-
based Products
EH R AR LA &k 1007 100 - REGRREELERER
2D Material Technology Limited BVI US$100 100 - Dormant
ABRAES 100%7T 100 - EBEEX
Xinfeng 2D (Fujian) Material PRC RMB22,051,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Technology Company Limited sale of Graphene-
("Xinfeng 2D")* based Products and
investment holding
BEME_EMHMBEERAT  $E AEE - 100 RERHEAREEMR
([FEg))+ 22,051,000 RARR
Fujian Caidian Keji Company Limited PRC RMB1,150,000 - 100 Sale of Graphene-based
("Caidian Keji")* Products
BREREMBAREELA e ARE - 100 HELRBER
(BB 1,150,0007C

* Quanzhou Baofeng and Xinfeng 2D are registered as
companies with limited liability (solely invested by Taiwan,
Hong Kong or Macau legal person) under the law of the
PRC.

# Caidian Keji is registered as company with limited liability
(wholly invested by a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise)
under the law of the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 December 2020 and 2019 or at any time during the
year.

* RMBERIE G AREBETEDE
RAMMWBREERA (RBRE
ABE) -

' ERE R R ARETBEAEEMNAE
E)EEE”AET (SIERELEIEANT

RZEBE_EFRER_ZFE—NF+=A
—t+— B AFEE AR BEEN
BARBRITEMERES -

BERYE —ToRFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FT-_FF+_H=+—HILFE

46. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 46. SOt R 2 HLE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved AT BHRgEEEeN _E - —F
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 = A=+ A ERRERE-
March 2021.
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